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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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HONG KONG
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10 Metropolis Drive
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Hong Kong
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Fax: (852) 2311 3170
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Shanghai

China

Telephone: (86) 21 3976 2468
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Hong Kong
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

B4 B B 588 i 2

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

St 35 e Bl

For the year ended 31 December
BETAZ=Z1T—HILEE

2019 2018 Change
B —EF )\ Ak
Turnover (HK$’ million) BEF (H &) 2,126.4 4,127.1 -48%
Gross profit (HK$’ million) A (A EHIT) 781.1 2,061.0 -62%
Operating loss (HK$’ million) KERR (a3 & oT) (1,019.5) (786.6) +30%
Loss attributable to shareholders JB T A s 45
(HK$’ million) (A &#I0) (1,070.1) (994.4) +8%
Gross margin (%) B R (%) 36.7 49.9 -13.2pptH 7 B
Operating margin (%) 48 2% BRI (%) -47.9 -19.1 -28.8pptH 7 B
Net margin (%) T8 2(%) -50.3 -24.1 -26.2pptH 7 B
Basic loss per share (HK cents) B IR LA 1R (D (64.9) (60.3) +8%
KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS FRMBRE
For the year ended 31 December
BET__H=1T—HILEE
2019 2018 Change
—EE —F)\E 4l
Average inventory turnover (days) T BRI (H)
(Note 1) (FfhaE—) 157 198 -41
Average debtors turnover (days) P E IR HCGE RE (H)
(Note 2) (Bt 19 15 +4
Average creditors turnover (days) 34 AT AR BB E (H)
(Note 3) (=) 259 115 +144
Capital expenditure (HK$’ million) EAR X (F &) 26.4 115.3 “77%
As at 31 December
B+ —-H=1+—H
2019 2018 Change
I 1L S AN |
Cash and bank balances B4 B ERAT #5 B
(HKS$’ million) (Note 4) (A &HoT) (FEEm) 182.3 363.0 -50%
Bank loans (HK$’ million) SRATE R (H &) = 192.3 -100%
Equity attributable to shareholders JI R A B A
(HK$’ million) (A &) 692.7 1,779.8 -61%
Current ratio (times) (Note 5) B LB H A (FF) (B 5E D) 1.5 2.1 -28%
Net gearing ratio (%) (Note 6) T A fE R %) (M sE7S) Net Cash Net Cash -
T & IR

4 Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 5 B A TR

Notes:

The calculation of average inventory turnover (days) is based on the average
of opening and closing inventory balances divided by the cost of sales and
multiplied by number of days in the year.

The calculation of average debtors turnover (days) is based on the average of
opening and closing balances of trade receivables divided by the turnover and
multiplied by number of days in the year.

The calculation of average creditors turnover (days) is based on the average of
opening and closing balances of trade payables divided by the purchases and
multiplied by number of days in the year.

Cash and bank balances comprise cash and cash equivalents (including those
transferred to assets classified as held-for-sale) and pledged bank deposits.

The calculation of current ratio (times) is based on total current assets divided by
total current liabilities as at year end.

The calculation of net gearing ratio (%) is based on net debt (being bank loans
less cash and bank balances) divided by equity attributable to shareholders as at
year end.

Turnover Analysis

8 Vi

(For the year ended 31 December)
(WET A=+ —HIEERE)

18%

2019
2018 Core Brands Business
0 b RS
86% 82%

Other Brands Business

A b B3B8

B 5E -
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A7 A () J9 % 40 RARRAT 8] 2R A5 8RR
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T BB R (%) TR T 4 R 2 5 T A (R A ek
Bl MO BRATHE BR) B DU RO 15 W 4 5O -
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S HEH

(As at 31 December)
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T A B 5 1

For the years ended 31 December
BE+THA=Z1+—HILEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
SRS CFNE DR DR RE CE R
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T 0 T T T T aR VI
Results E$7
Turnover e 2,126,362 4,127,087 5,210,995 6,501,677 8,379,095
Gross profit B 781,138 2,061,029 2,753,036 3,311,673 4,724,729
Operating loss RERH (1,019,535) (786,577) (688,823) (819,488) (497,623)
Loss attributable to shareholders % 5 M 45 5 18 (1,070,127) (994,397) (734,204) (819,127) (378,888)
Basic loss per share (HK cents) & FEA I8 (#5Al) (64.9) (60.3) (44.5) (49.7) (23.0)
As at 31 December
wt+_H=+—H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
SR AE CFNE DR DR RE DR -RE
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
T T T T T T T ER I
Assets and liabilities EEMAE
Non-current assets I B 608,015 787,664 1,358,995 1,469,595 1,801,203
Current assets i 623,349 2,181,706 2,794,865 3,583,556 4,961,955
Total assets B E 1,231,364 2,969,370 4,153,860 5,053,151 6,763,158
Non-current liabilities IE I B & fE 23,157 3,850 13,409 30,729 18,184
Current liabilities E AR 411,854 1,054,064 1,104,790 1,490,372 2,095,848
Total liabilities AR 435,011 1,057,914 1,118,199 1,521,101 2,114,032
Total equity HOME A5 796,353 1,911,456 3,035,661 3,532,050 4,649,126
Attributable to: LLF % T ENY -
Shareholders & 692,711 1,779,825 2,874,907 3,371,398 4,462,615
Non-controlling interests I £ 1 M HE 4 103,642 131,631 160,754 160,652 186,511
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV

Dear Shareholders,

In 2019, the Sino-United States trade disputes escalated, exerting
mounting downward pressure on China’s economy. The prospect of
a weakening economy dampened the Chinese consumers’ demand,
causing the growth in retail sales of consumer goods in the country
to decelerate. In recent years, the emergence of e-commerce, fierce
competition between homogenised industry players and changes in
consumption patterns and behaviour have combined to deliver a heavy
blow to the traditional industry of women’s shoes. Business at many
women’s shoes retailing companies was sluggish, and this has been
reflected in their financial results. Aiming for a turnaround, the Group
pressed ahead with its business transformation throughout the year of
2019. Notably, it took a more aggressive approach to the move in an
attempt to get through the throes of it quickly. This can lay a foundation
for its long-term development.

The Group carried out a large-scale restructuring of its distribution
channel by converting most of its directly-managed stores to a
“partnership system”. The “partnership system” affords the Group more
flexibility and minimises the operational risk associated with high fixed
costs. It can also lead to a better cost structure that paves the way for an
“asset-light” business model to which the Group has begun switching.
As to the small number of new-image stores which are directly operated
by the Group and located in popular shopping malls, the Group has
proactively oriented their layout to the shopping habits of young
consumers and projected a youthful and stylish brand image there.
Meanwhile, the Group also streamlined its headquarters and back office
through a significant organisational restructuring to match the scaled-
down retail store network.

During the year under review, the Group stepped up its effort regarding
the clearance of aged inventory. This resulted in significant decreases in
both the inventory level and the inventory turnover days. The move also
helped the Group get closer to a healthy inventory level.

To cope with the difficult operating environment, the Group decided
to gradually withdraw from the business of retailing products of mid-
to high-end brands at brick-and-mortar stores. This would allow it to
concentrate its strength on the development of e-commerce to adapt
to the growing trend of online shopping. The Group also continued to
strengthen its capability to research on and develop products. To match
this endeavor, the Group enhanced its flexible supply chain management
system to launch “Must-buy KOL (key opinion leader) Items” which
met with enthusiastic responses from online consumers. To encourage
more involvement of customers in its marketing campaigns and increase
their loyalty, the Group adopted the “Store-Empowering Tool” as a
platform for customer loyalty program. On that platform, the Group
offered exclusive services for its VIP customers that can boost repeated
sales.

In 2019, the Group already completed a massive restructuring of its
sales network. It will follow up with the optimisation of its offline
sales channel mix in 2020, with its main sales channel run under the
“partnership system” and its new-image stores as a supplementary one.
The measure is aimed at raising the efficiency of the sales channels. The
Group will cooperate closely with its business partners in improving
the sales performance of the stores and in consolidating and expanding
Daphne’s market share.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
N ek

The Group will step up investment in its e-commerce business because
it is where it will be able to make a breakthrough. Its e-commerce
department will continue to cooperate closely with its product design
team and supply chain department in launching more “Must-buy KOL
Items” which are popular with online consumers. It will also apply
popular marketing methods to boost sales of products. Moreover,
the Group will continue to consolidate and expand the scope of its
cooperation with online platforms and distributors with the aim of
expanding its e-commerce business.

The Group’s competitiveness lies in the strengths and quality of its
products. Therefore, it will enhance the trendiness and comfort of
its products by continuing with product research and development.
Meanwhile, it will also introduce more diverse athleisure products into
the market to meet the wants and needs of more young consumers. The
Group will also increase its capability to analyse data about consumers
and sales so as to track the ever-changing consumer preferences and
market trends.

The Group will concentrate its effort on building its brand. As a
customer-centric brand-driven company, the Group will enhance its
ability to gauge consumer preferences. We will conduct varied and
creative campaigns of branding and marketing to attract the attention of
more consumers and to maintain close links with them.

In 2019, the Group made satisfactory progress in its business
transformation. This has reflected a strong sense of cohesiveness
within the Group and an ability to execute business plans efficiently.
Presently, the operations have been scaled down to a size that meets the
management’s expectations. An organisational structure that fits with an
“asset-light” business model has begun to take shape. In 2020, having
attained a lean organisational structure, Daphne will work towards
the goal of becoming a brand-driven company with an “asset-light”
business model. In the short term, China’s consumer market will be
severely affected by the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia.
However, on the back of the joint effort of the entire staff as a cohesive
force, the Group shall be able to succeed in its business transformation,
attain a business recovery in the medium and long term, and turn to
profitable again.

Finally, I would like to express my gratitude to all the customers,
business partners and shareholders for their support to the Group during
the trying times. I would also like to thank the management and all the
employees for their diligence and contribution to the Group’s business
transformation.

Chang Chih-Kai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020

8 Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019

7 A T 5K R 7 A T I SRS R B 1 o RIS I A A
TIOR3} 78 7 S5 B o T R AR I e A A B R
AR R S S P R S AR - R E AR B
BEEEN ALK AT BY R R AT 8 8 7
oo AR HEE B o BEAL > A B2 BRI R B R
B B Lo & ROT ST 0 A 1F > SO AR B3
5 1) T 355 i J] o

58K i B OB R R AR B 5L R 2 A o AR
VB 17 A8 A SO E T o AN TR T A 9 IR EE
EPRE o R R HE R E S E BRI E A S
2 A A BT OR o AR SR IR R AR TR R
GrHTREST > LB AR R H B B T G g

ool L T T S A A R A BS ) B L o A AR B R
AT DA B bl LB B s T B TR AR o
BRI M B B M A E RS ES
THEFE TR - B R i B B 2R

AL T — JUFE R BT A NI R R O
BT RO B BREE R KA BATRE S o H
il ) B B D B B R I T - BAR Y TR
EHES 2 S S VISR 5/ AR St < e 7
S R [ ) R — AR TR E B R
AR SEN H AR AE ST A7 o 3R AR il
R U1 A0 B 2 T 1 R 32 R 7 5 A
&> B LT B TRORWS T > A 42 B e 4 R IR
SEMCGERSERY > EBIh RIED T > I AR -

AR > UL BT A R SEH SRR ROBCR R
CRUR B 0 78 > TR A O 0 3 O 00 3 A 8 ) 9 S o
IF] I, B2 Ja it 34 I R o 8 AR B > 2 0
Y BT Al 0 B B R

E

Bl

T F_FFE=A-+tH



BEOOSUR OB MR R AR AW | 4 2019 9

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BILJE w5243 M

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, the global economy was faced with uncertainties. The biggest
one is the Sino-United States trade disputes that had exerted mounting
downward pressure on China’s economy. China’s gross domestic
product grew by 6%, which was the lowest growth in the past 30 years.
Growth in retail sales of consumer goods in the country decelerated to
8% in 2019 from that in 2018. The sluggish economy made consumers
more cautious, thus dampening the domestic demand.

The women’s shoes industry has been undergoing a restructuring. The
entry of more overseas and online brands into the domestic market
intensified the competition. The constantly rising rents and labour cost
exerted immense pressure on conventional brick-and-mortar retailers,
weighing on their profitability.

According to the latest “Chinese Consumer Confidence Index”
published by the National School of Development at Peking University,
it is expected that the online shopping will be a sector which is the most
popular among consumers with the most fast growing in consumption
expenditure in the coming year. On the contrary, the willingness to
shop in offline stores will wane. Consumption upgrade, accelerating
urbanisation and the popularity of the internet has made online shopping
a more important consumption channel among the consumer group of
the present generation. The prevailing online shopping further hit the
brick-and-mortar retailers. The brick-and-mortar retailers should act
urgently in business transformation.

The Group’s Performance

In 2019, the Group’s turnover decreased by 48% to HK$2,126.4 million
(2018: HK$4,127.1 million). This was mainly attributable to the
significant decrease in its number of stores to 425 as at 31 December
2019 from 2,820 as at 31 December 2018, and the unsatisfactory
performance of the Core Brands Business. The Group’s gross profit
decreased to HK$781.1 million (2018: HK$2,061.0 million) as a
result of the decrease in turnover and the increased proportion of
aged inventory in sales mix. Gross margin decreased to 36.7% (2018:
49.9%).

The Group recorded an operating loss of HK$1,019.5 million in 2019
compared with the operating loss of HK$786.6 million in 2018. Loss
attributable to shareholders of the Group was HK$1,070.1 million for
the year of 2019 (2018: HK$994.4 million).

Basic loss per share was 64.9 HK cents (2018: 60.3 HK cents). The
board of directors did not recommend payment of a final dividend
(2018: Nil).

e/ 401
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B BILJE w5243 M

During the year, as part of the business transformation, the Group
stepped up its efforts to liquidate aged inventory, significantly reducing
its inventory level by 84% to HK$162.0 million as at 31 December 2019
from HK$992.3 million as at 31 December 2018. The average inventory
turnover days significantly decreased by 41 days to 157 days (2018: 198
days). The Group’s continued efforts in inventory management helps
build a healthy inventory structure in the long run and facilitates its
gradual shift towards an “asset-light” business model.

To cope with the increasingly difficult operating environment and
rising cost pressures, the Group accelerated the restructuring of its
sales channel to adopt the “asset-light” business model. During the year
under review, the Group converted most of its directly-managed stores
to “partnership system”. In addition, as to the small number of new-
image stores which are directly operated by the Group and located in
shopping malls, the Group also has proactively oriented their layout to
the shopping habits of young consumers and made such stores project
a youthful and stylish brand image. This will not only help mitigate
the negative operating leverage effect brought by high fixed cost, but
also help the Group to explore a way to attain sustainable development
during the painful period of the restructuring of its business. After a net
closure of 2,395 points-of-sale (“POS”) in 2019, the Group had a total
number of 425 POS as at 31 December 2019, of which 360 POS were
under its Core Brands Business and 65 POS were under its Other Brands
Business.

Moreover, the Group carried out significant organisational restructuring
that covers the frontline operations, regional logistics and the
headquarters to match the streamlined sales network. This helped the
Group to have a well-managed cost base for the long term development
with an “asset-light” business model.

During the year under review, with the “Store Empowerment Tool”
as a platform for customer loyalty program, the Group offered
exclusive shopping guide service to its VIP customers, listened to
client’s feedback in a timely manner, provided exclusive offerings
and incentives, and shared the latest information about products and
membership activities.

Core Brands Business

The Group’s Core Brands Business is the business of retailing
footwear products and accessories under its own brands, “Daphne” and
“Shoebox”, in mainland China.

To speed up the business transformation, the Group took a more
aggressive approach to the restructuring of its sales channel in 2019.
During the year under review, the Group recorded a net closure of 2,288
POS (including 2,174 directly-managed stores and 114 franchised
stores), representing 86% reduction in the number of POS of Core
Brands Business compared to that as at 31 December 2018.

Due to the negative impact of macroeconomic downturn and intense

market competition, Core Brand Business’ same-store sales declined by
approximately 20% for the year of 2019.

10 Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019
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As a result of a significant decrease in POS numbers and decline in
same-store sales, turnover at the Core Brands Business decreased by
50% to HK$1,882.9 million (2018: HK$3,798.8 million). The segment
revenue generated from sales to external customers of the Core Brands
Business accounted for 82% (2018: 86%) of the Group’s total revenue
for 2019.

The aggressive inventory clearance is essential to the adoption of an
“asset-light” business model but it has also inevitably led to significant
erosion of the gross margin. The gross margin at the Core Brands
Business fell by 13.2 percentage points to 32.2% in 2019 from 45.4% in
2018. The average selling price (“ASP”) decreased to RMB135 (2018:
RMB155).

Although most of the store network has been converted to “partnership
system” for a better cost structure for a long run, the one-off provision
brought by large-scale channel adjustment and organisational structure
optimisation exerted immense downward pressure on the operating
profit margin throughout the year. In 2019, Core Brands Business
recorded an operating loss of HK$951.6 million (2018: HK$788.2
million). The operating profit margin was -50.5% (2018: -20.7%).

The Group continued to increase its investment in product research and
development as one of the key initiatives in the business transformation.
To adapt to the athleisure trend, the Group launched more athleisure
products. The move was supplemented with a fast and flexible supply
chain system to better meet the preference and demands of the current
young consumers. During the year of 2019, as a customer-centric
business, the Group pressed ahead with its customer relationship
management (“CRM”) programme. Meanwhile, the Group worked with
a big data company to enhance its capability to analyse the existing
data about sales so as to capitalise on the trends in fashionable products
and to develop production and sales plans that better satisfy the market
demands. Furthermore, thanks to the enriched membership privileges
programme, the Group further expanded its membership base and
enhanced the customer loyalty during the year.

The Group continued to strengthen the refreshed brand image with
brand marketing programmes. Emphasis was placed on social media
marketing to better cater to the shopping behaviour of young consumers
and strengthen the brand’s communication with them. In addition, the
Group also cooperated with fashion bloggers and key opinion leaders
(“KOL”) through product placement that can help its products gain more
exposure and stimulate consumers’ shopping desire. In the second half
of 2019, the Group invited S.H.E, a popular Taiwanese girl group, again
to shoot advertisements, perfectly demonstrating the stylish, confident
and bold image of the Daphne brand. It resonated with consumers and
created extensive buzz on social media.
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Other Brands Business

The Group’s Other Brands Business mainly consists of its e-commerce
business and the retail operations of mid- to high-end brands (including
the Group’s own brands and brands under exclusive distributorships).

In 2019, the Group decided to gradually withdraw from its retail
business of mid- to high-end brands at brick-and-mortar stores
(including those in mainland China and Taiwan) and to focus on
e-commerce business in the challenging business environment.
Turnover at the Other Brands Business decreased by 33% to HK$388.8
million (2018: HK$582.5 million). The number of the POS decreased
by 62% to 65 POS (2018: 172 POS) as at 31 December 2019. The Other
Brands Business accounted for approximately 18% (2018: 14%) of the
Group’s total revenue in 2019.

The Group continued with its aggressive clearance of aged inventory
and further increased the proportion of e-commerce business in the
Group’s total revenue. The gross margin at Other Brands Business
dropped to 45.1% in 2019 from 54.4% in 2018 due to continued
downward pressure on it. Other Brands Business recorded an operating
loss of HK$48.7 million (2018: HK$26.7 million).

In 2019, the Group reorganised its resources to step up its efforts to
develop the e-commerce business. The Group customised a flexible
supply chain management system according to the requirements of
operating an e-commerce business. Adopting a model that enables quick
responses to orders for small quantities of goods, the Group was able to
respond promptly to the rapidly changing consumption habits and grasp
those opportunities in the ever-changing online market.

During the year under review, in addition to the regular seasonal
product launches, the Group also introduced “Must-buy KOL Items”
occasionally to cater to online consumer preferences. These products
had met with overwhelming responses from online consumers. They
continued to increase its contribution to the Group’s total revenue and
remained profitable.

Moreover, the Group continued to strengthen its cooperation with the
emerging e-commerce platforms and social platforms to attract more
young consumers. In addition to maintaining close relationships with
key online platforms, the Group also continued to strengthen with its
strategic partnerships with selected online distributors to expand its
market online.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Analysis of Results by Business Segment
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the turnover of the Group was
HK$2,126.4 million (2018: HK$4,127.1 million), a decrease of 48%

St 755 1o

W5 AR5 W
BEEZ-NETHAZ+— B IREE - REHK
B EH 12640 BB T (ZF— /\E 4127105

compared to last year. The business performance of individual segments ~ #5J70) > 8 L 4EIH D 48% o & 7-#B 2 FEH R B 5 Wn
is summarised as follows: T
Core Brands Business Other Brands Business Manufacturing Business
ANYES Al % B BERH
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
(HKS’ million) (7 & t) % T S | N e G . G it 2
Revenue from external customers ¥ 0% F it & 1,737.6 3,544.6 388.8 582.5 - -
Inter-segment revenue il len 145.3 254.2 - - 88.4 2158
Total segment revenue A3 e 4 A A 1,882.9 3,798.8 388.8 5825 88.4 215.8
Segment gross profit PRyl 606.7 17253 175.1 317.1 (22.7) 124
Segment gross margin Vi EYIES 32.2% 45.4% 45.1% 54.4% -25.7% 5.8%
Segment operating (loss)/profit /M FbEEE (K54d) /2 Al (951.6) (788.2) (48.7) (26.7) (35.5) 1.4
Segment operating margin AR B AR -50.5% -20.7% -12.5% -4.6% -40.2% 0.6%

During the year ended 31 December 2019, total segment revenue of
the Core Brands Business decreased by 50% to HK$1,882.9 million
from HK$3,798.8 million in last year. It is mainly due to the closure
of stores and decline in the same-store sales. Its gross margin dropped
from 45.4% to 32.2% as a result of product mix and more clearance of
old stocks. The segment recorded an operating loss of HK$951.6 million
compared to that of HK$788.2 million in last year.

On the other hand, the total segment revenue of Other Brands Business
decreased by 33% to HK$388.8 million (2018: HK$582.5 million)
which is also attributable to the closure of stores during the year. The
segment recorded an operating loss of HK$48.7 million compared to
HK$26.7 million last year.

Other Income

Other income decreased by HK$16.8 million from HK$42.6 million in
last year to HK$25.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
decrease in other income is mainly due to the reduction in government
incentives and interest income this year.

Operating Expenses

Overall, the Group’s operating expenses (including other losses —
net, selling & distribution and general & administrative expenses)
decreased by HK$1,063.7 million or 37% to HK$1,826.5 million from
HK$2,890.2 million in last year. The drop in operating expenses was
generally in line with sales decrease. The operating expenses included
one-off restructuring costs of approximately HK$139.3 million and
HK$80.2 million in relation to staff redundancy cost and loss on
termination of leases respectively, due to downscaling of its physical
store network and restructuring of its back office during the year.
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Operating Loss

As a result of the above, the Group incurred an operating loss of
HK$1,019.5 million in 2019, increased by HK$232.9 million as
compared to HK$786.6 million in last year. If excluding the above-
mentioned one-off restructuring costs totaling HK$219.5 million, the
operating loss would be approximately HK$800.0 million.

Income Tax Expense

The Group’s income tax expense for the year was HK$54.3 million
(2018: HK$217.1 million). This is largely attributable to derecognition
of deferred income tax assets for certain timing differences and tax
losses.

Loss Attributable to Shareholders

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s loss attributable to
shareholders also increased by 8% to HK$1,070.1 million compared to
that of HK$994.4 million in last year. Basic loss per share was 64.9 HK
cents (2018: 60.3 HK cents).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s inventories largely decreased
by HK$830.3 million from HK$992.3 million to HK$162.0 million.
Average inventory turnover during the year was 157 days, decreased by
41 days. Included in the inventories, the balance of provision for slow-
moving and obsolete items was HK$170.2 million as at 31 December
2019 (2018: HK$197.3 million).

Trade Receivables

The amount of trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 decreased
by HK$95.2 million, or 59%, to HK$64.9 million compared to that of
HK$160.1 million in 2018. Loss allowance balance for trade receivable
amounted to HK$15.1 million (2018: HK$9.7 million). Average debtors
turnover increased to 19 days (2018: 15 days).

Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s trade payables decreased by
HK$391.9 million, or 74%, to HK$138.7 million (2018: HK$530.6
million) and the average creditors turnover increased by 144 days to
259 days (2018: 115 days) mainly due to the extended credit period of
certain major suppliers.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances,
comprising cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits (including
those transferred to disposal group classified as held-for-sale)
amounting to HK$182.3 million (2018: HK$363.0 million), which were
denominated mainly in Renminbi. As at 31 December 2019, there were
no short-term bank loans (2018: HK$192.3 million).

The net decrease in cash and bank balances of HK$180.7 million (2018:
HK$123.3 million) during the year is analysed as follows:

ﬁA:?~jL$+*H =+ —H AEEMBFEHS K

& (B8 & KB &S EY (BREREE N M
J%M’Etlj%z%F K IR ERAT A7 3K £5182.3 H
HEIT (T — /4 1 363.0 A Ml T) - TEUARYE
Ty ES AL o JJLAQZ; FEFHA=Z+—H > R4EH
WA BRI ER (T F—/\4E 0 19237 #iE o) -

A B A ROERAT &S BRI D 1807 H i T (=
— \AF 1233 B o0) T T

For the year ended 31 December
BETH=1+—HILHEE

2019 2018
—®JUE =\
HK$’million HKS$’ million
A &ET T & T
Net cash generated from/(used in) g EE () 2
operating activities iR ] 218.2 (157.8)
Capital expenditure A B 3 (26.4) (115.3)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets th B [ 52 B T A WOH 70.8 29.5
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries and HEE B B N D M 4 & A FIT S 3R0E
financial asset 19.8 74.5
Net bank interest paid SN P fEﬁ RIAINS! (1.6) 0.5)
Net bank loans (repaid)/raised TR EE %E B (191.2) 35.8
Lease payments GiENEY ﬁ K (271.0) -
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes SR 5, 48 256 5 ) 2 5 ¢ 0.7 10.5
(180.7) (123.3)
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s net gearing ratio was in net cash ANE—NWETZH=ZT—H - AEBEZFAML
(2018: net cash) position. Current ratio was 1.5 times (2018: 2.1 times) 35795 {?fﬁi (ZF—)\4F  FHE) - BERB LR
as at 31 December 2019. Management closely monitors the Group’s A 1.5 (& — /\4F 1 2.16%) - REEEHE &%)

financial performance and liquidity position. Taking into consideration
of the plans and measures to improve the liquidity position, such
as disposals of certain non-core properties and raising of additional
resources of funding as and when need, it believes that the Group has
sufficient financial resources to meet its obligation as and when they fall
due over the next twelve months.
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Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign exchange exposures and the Group
may use forward foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation
in the relevant foreign currency is anticipated. During the year ended
31 December 2019, the Group did not enter into any foreign exchange
forward contract to hedge the foreign exchange risk exposure on bank
loans denominated in USD or HKD. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk was not significant.

Pledge of Assets
As at 31 December 2019, the Group had no pledged bank deposits
(2018: HK$174.2 million) and no investment properties pledged (2018:
HK$121.3 million).

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group incurred capital expenditure of HK$26.4
million (2018: HK$115.3 million) mainly for retail network expansion
and renovation.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a workforce of about 948
(2018: 8,700) people predominantly in mainland China, Taiwan
and Hong Kong. Employee benefits expense for the year ended 31
December 2019 was HK$582.9 million (2018: HK$752.3 million). Due
to the large scale of restructuring and transformation of the business
model, it also incurred a redundancy cost amounting to HK$139.3
million (2018: HK$15.4 million) for the year. The overall decrease of
HK$169.4 million or 23% in employee benefits expense was mainly due
to the reduction in headcount of factories, stores and back office.

The Group values its human resources and recognises the importance of
retaining high calibre employees. Remuneration packages are generally
structured with reference to market conditions and terms as well as
individual qualifications. In addition, share options, share appreciation
rights and discretionary bonuses are granted to eligible employees
based on the performance of the Group and of the individual employee.
The Group also provides mandatory provident fund schemes, medical
insurance schemes, staff purchase discounts and training programmes to
employees.
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OUTLOOK

Although China and the United States reached trade agreements in phase
one of their negotiation, the outlook of the global economy remains
unclear due to the uncertainties about the execution of such agreements
and about the following talks. In the Internet Era, e-commerce has been
developing faster than anyone could have imagined and has changed
people’s lifestyle and consumption habits. Young consumers are the
most loyal supporter of e-commerce, and their daily life has already
become closely connected with online shopping. All fashion and retail
brands must face the competition and challenge from e-commerce.
In addition, the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 in early 2020
severely affected the consumer sentiment around the Lunar New Year
and exacerbated the problem of sluggish sales in the brick-and-mortar
retail industry. Due to these negative factors, the consumption market in
China will be under tremendous pressure in short and medium term.

In face of the drastically changing market, the Group has begun its
transformation into a brand-driven company with an “asset-light”
business model. The Group believes that it has attained an optimal scale
of operation and established a preliminary framework of the “asset-
light” business model following the large-scale restructuring of its
sales network in 2019. With the completion of the clearance of aged
inventory, the percentage of new products will increase in the product
mix in 2020. It is expected that the gross margin will be restored to a
healthy level. The Group is still facing an enormous challenge posed
by the epidemic, but it is confident that the effect of the business
transformation will be gradually shown in the second half of 2020.

In terms of distribution channel, the Group already finished a large
scale restructuring of its sales network in 2019 and it will continue
to optimise the offline sales channel mix in 2020 with its main sales
channel run under the “partnership system” and its new-image stores
as a supplementary one. For the directly-managed new-image stores,
the Group will closely monitor the store sales performance, constantly
optimise the in-store marketing activities mechanism, and enhance the
training of the frontline sales representatives to provide the customers
with a pleasant shopping experience. At the stores operated under the
“partnership system”, the Group will deepen the cooperation with its
business partners. Apart from enhancing the partnership mechanism of
the “partnership system”, the Group will provide support to its business
partners in such areas as brand marketing, formulation of product sales
strategies and the operation and management of stores in order to boost
the stores’ sales performance and to consolidate and expand Daphne’s
market share.
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The Group will increase its investment in its e-commerce business
because it is where it will be able to make a breakthrough. Through
the close cooperation between the product design team and the supply
chain department, the Group will continue to optimise the flexible
supply chain management system to speed up its response to the
market and launch more “Must-buy KOL Items” to contribute to the
sales momentum. Moreover, the Group will make use of popular
online marketing methods to enable consumers to get to know its
products more easily and to shop more conveniently, thus suiting their
consumption habits.

The Group firmly believes that its strong brand will be able to help
it achieve a breakthrough amid the persistently sluggish business
environment of the women’s shoes industry. Therefore, it will enhance
the trendiness and comfort of its products by continuing with product
research and development and by stepping up its cooperation with
external design teams. This will enable the Group to meet young
consumers’ demand for aesthetic shoes. The Group will also introduce
more diverse athleisure products into the market to capitalise on the
growing athleisure trend. It will continue to cooperate with big data
company to enhance its capability to analyse data about consumers and
sales so as to track the ever-changing consumer preferences and market
trends. This will allow the Group to promptly provide products that
exactly meet market’s wants and needs.

Maintaining close relationships with consumers is essential to brand
building. Through cooperation with a brand consultancy, the Group will
try to enhance its ability to gauge consumer preferences and thus adjust
its branding and marketing strategies accordingly with the aim of suiting
younger consumers’ consumption habits. The Group will also continue
to step up its marketing efforts in social media to project a youthful and
fashionable image of itself. It will thus be able to maintain close links
with consumers and, at the same time, enable its products to gain a lot of
exposure in the media. The Group will enhance its customer relationship
management by listening carefully to consumers’ wishes and feedback.
This can increase both customer loyalty and repeat business.

Looking ahead, the Group will remain determined to press ahead with
its transformation into a brand-driven company with an “asset-light”
business model. It will review the results of the strategy and adjust it
promptly if necessary. Meanwhile, the Group will continue with its
customer-centric approach in such areas as the maintenance of close
links with consumers, improvement of the quality of products and
enhancement of its ability to operate business. All this can help the
Group attain steady growth in sales in the medium and long term and
turn a profit again with the aim of getting back on track.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHANG Chih-Kai, aged 39, has been an executive director of the
Company since November 2004. He was appointed as the Chairman of
the board of directors in May 2017 and as the Chief Executive Officer
(“CEO”) in April 2016. Mr. Chang is responsible for strategic planning
and overall management of the Group. He has joined the Group since
2003 and accumulates over 10 years of experience in footwear industry
with focus on product development, production, merchandising, as
well as general management. He studied a bachelor’s degree of Art
in Auckland University after graduated from Pakuranga College in
New Zealand. Mr. Chang is the brother of Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao, an
executive director, and holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. CHANG Chih-Chiao, aged 37, joined the Group in 2007 and
has become an executive director of the Company since June 2009.
He is currently responsible for product development and design, and
marketing functions. Mr. Chang obtained a bachelor’s degree in Visual
Communication from Northumbria University in the United Kingdom.
Mr. Chang is the brother of Mr. Chang Chih-Kai, the Chairman and the
CEO and an executive director, and also holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. HON Ping Cho Terence, aged 60, has been an independent non-
executive director of the Company since September 2019. Currently,
Mr. Hon is also an independent non-executive director of the four
companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
namely Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (China) Holdings Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 520), Jimu Group Limited (Stock Code: 8187),
361 Degrees International Limited (Stock Code: 1361) and SinoMab
BioScience Limited (Stock Code 3681). He was previously the chief
financial officer and company secretary of DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 620) from June 2016 (as
chief financial officer) and November 2016 (as company secretary)
until September 2018. Prior to working at DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited, Mr. Hon worked at a number of companies,
including Auto Italia Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 720) as chief
financial officer and company secretary between December 2013
and April 2016, China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
3818) as chief financial officer between December 2010 and October
2012, Ka Wah Construction Materials (Hong Kong) Limited as chief
financial officer between September 2008 to December 2010, TOM
Group Limited (Stock Code: 2383) between June 2001 and February
2008 with his last position as the group finance director, and Ng Fung
Hong Limited as a company secretary of the group between 1996 and
2001. Before moving to the commercial section, Mr. Hon worked in an
international accounting firm.

Mr. Hon is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. He obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration (Financial Services) from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2004.

Mr. HUANG Shun-Tsai, aged 66, is a director of two health
technology companies in Taiwan. He has been active in the health
technology field for over 30 years. Mr. Huang has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2001.

Mr. KUO Jung-Cheng, aged 69, is a director of a manufacturing and
distribution company in China. Mr. Kuo is a former senator of the
Legislative Council in Taiwan. He has been serving the community in
Taiwan as a representative for over 20 years. Mr. Kuo holds an MBA
degree from University of Hawaii. Mr. Kuo has been an independent
non-executive director of the Company since 2001.
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The Company recognises the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s success and sustainability. The Company
is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate governance
practices as an essential component of high quality and has introduced
corporate governance practices appropriate to the operation and growth
of its business.

1.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code except for the deviations from code provisions
A.2.1 and A.6.7 which are explained under the “Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer” section and “Communications
with Shareholders and Investors” section on pages 26 and 31
respectively.

The board of directors (the “Board”) will continue to enhance its
corporate governance practices appropriate to the operation and
growth of its business and to review such practices from time
to time to ensure that the Company complies with statutory and
professional standards and align with the latest development.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for dealing in securities
of the Company by the directors. Having made specific enquiry
with all directors, all directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company also requires the relevant officers of the Group
to be bound by the Model Code, which prohibits them to deal
in securities of the Company at any time when he/she possesses
inside information in relation to those securities. No incident of
non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant officers was
noted by the Company during the year.

=3

% We bW OBRoEE OB AR A

AR 2019 21

AR TR R A S AE I R A B 1 S I
BAf s e bl Iy T BT o AN R BN H B Rk
ZREER > FRRERERERZEE TR
A LR AR T SR AR MO R 2 A G
HHL

R B

AR5 ) R B U 4 3 5 B AT IR R (T 2
7 1) 8 %5 LR (T L TR0 ) 6 0
2 A HE A SR (T AR A D) 2 IR -

WEE-NET A= —HIEFEER &
o3 m) ELIE ST AR SE A ST I TR 2 AR T 2 S
BUAGRSC - 1 i 8~ UG SO A2 10 S BB A6 T
ZHLRE > i B R 2 R 26 H 3T 2
[T R AT BUAR R ) B [ BB o e B3 o 2 i |
ARt g o

EEE ((EFE)) RN S G H R EE
Ledg R 2 AR SRR W B A0S e At A S
AW B> DL RAS 24 ) B 7 ik e MO e E
AT d B RS o

EHRZEHFZH

BB R AN A 2B RS AN C M
B T B Bk T 2 [ R AT A AT
R 2 5 W e S ) ) (TR HESE R ) o 6 1o 2l
R AMANE RMEFHCEL K
EREEE-NET A ST HIEEER
— T S ST R BT L

AN T IR B SRON Bl v AR B 2 A HE ST IR IR
A AT Ty ] 5 A LA 2 ) R S5 A B ) A0 R
B ARG HEEZESR RERN - AR AL
M 2 B s AR B A AT 7 R E ST T B A
Ut e



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
o AL 8

3. THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

22

3.1 Board Composition

The Board and Board Committees as at the date of this report

HHY
3.1 EHEGgHK

WEARE AW EEGNEFFRETE
Behm NI A LA

comprise:

Date of first Audit Nomination Remuneration
Members of the Board/Board Committees becoming director Committee Committee Committee
HEE EHABTEEANEA BHRMEEFZHY HHEEE WHEREG  FMZHEE
Executive directors B 1T# F
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai (Chairman & CEO) 22 November 2004 Member Member
SR (T EHATHAH) “EENEF—-AZ+ZH N A XA
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao 12 June 2009
R A “EEREAATZH
Independent non-executive directors 17 3 H 17# F
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 25 September 2019 Chairman Member Member
WA A “E-AERAAZAEH B N A R A
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai 31 July 2001 Member Chairman Member
B e “FEF-FLA=1—H A £ KA
Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng 31 July 2001 Member Member Chairman
LIPS S “FF-FEA=1—H A A BN

The executive directors draw on a rich and diverse
experience from the footwear distribution business while
the independent non-executive directors possess appropriate
professional qualifications and management expertise.
Through active participation in board meetings, taking
the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of
interests and serving on board committees, all independent
non-executive directors contribute to the effective direction
of the Company and to safeguard the interests of the
Company and its shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board was
in compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors (representing at least one-third of
the Board), with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
except that during the period from 30 June 2019 (the date of
the resignation of Mr. Lee Ted Tak Tai as independent non-
executive director) to 25 September 2019 (the date of the
appointment of Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence as independent
non-executive director).
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According to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company
is required to have at least three independent non-executive
directors. According to Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, at
least one of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company must have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise
(the “Qualification”). According to Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules, the Audit Committee of the Company must comprise
a minimum of three members, and at least one of whom
is an independent non-executive director who has the
Qualification.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 1
July 2019, following the resignation of Mr. Lee Ted Tak Tai
as an independent non-executive director of the Company on
30 June 2019:

(a) the Company only has two independent non-executive
directors, thus the number of independent non-executive
directors falls below the minimum number required
under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules;

(b) there is no independent non-executive director of the
Company who has the Qualification as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules;

(c) the Audit Committee comprises no independent non-
executive director with the Qualification as required
under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules; and

(d) the Audit Committee only has two members, thus the
number of members falls below the minimum number
required under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

On 25 September 2019, the Company has appointed Mr. Hon
Ping Cho Terence as an independent non-executive director
to fill up the vacancy of independent non-executive director
with appropriate Qualification to meet the requirements set
out in Rules 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company,
and the Company considers these directors to be independent
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The names,
biographies of the directors and relationship among them
are set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 19 to 20 of this annual report.
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3.2

3.3

34

Directors’ Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overall management and control
of the Company, including the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and service of the company
secretary and senior management. Any director may request
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense, upon making reasonable request
to the Board.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated responsibilities to the executive
directors and senior management of the Company, including
implementing decisions of the Board and directing and
conducting the day-to-day operation and management of
the Group. The delegated functions and responsibilities are
periodically reviewed by the Board and approval has to be
obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
are entered.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The appointment of a new director must be approved by
the Board. The Board has delegated to the Nomination
Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship including the consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professionals when
necessary. The Nomination Committee has established
certain guidelines to assess the candidates. These guidelines
emphasise appropriate professional knowledge and industry
experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
possible time commitments to the Board and the Company.

All non-executive directors including independent non-
executive directors are appointed for a specific term of one to
three years. All directors are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and are eligible for re-election
at annual general meetings in accordance with the Listing
Rules and the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”). Every director newly appointed
by the Board is subject to re-election at the first general
meeting after his/her appointment.
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3.5

Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai and Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng, have served
as independent non-executive directors of the Company
for more than 9 years. In addition to their confirmations of
independence in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Huang and Mr. Kuo continue to demonstrate the
attributes of independent non-executive directors and there
is no evidence that their tenure have had any impact on their
independence. The Board is of the opinion that Mr. Huang
and Mr. Kuo remain independent notwithstanding the length
of their services and believe that their valuable knowledge
and experience continue to generate significant contribution
to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Board Practices and Conduct of Meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over the
management. Directors may participate either in person or
through electronic means of communications. Notice of
regular board meetings is served to all directors at least 14
days prior to the meeting. For other board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda of each board meeting is usually sent to all directors
together with the notice of meeting in order to give them an
opportunity to include any other matters in the agenda for
discussion in the meeting. Board papers together with all
appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to
directors at least 3 days before each board meeting to keep
the directors apprised of the latest development and financial
position of the Group and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever
necessary.

The Chairman and other relevant senior management
normally attend regular board and committee meetings, and
where necessary, other board and committee meetings to
advise on business development, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and
other major aspects of the Group. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to all directors for comment in due course after
each meeting and the final copy, which is kept by the
company secretary, is open for directors’ inspection.

Any material transaction, which involves a conflict of
interests for a substantial shareholder or a director, will be
considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened
board meeting. Except for those circumstances permitted
by the Articles of Association, a director who has a material
interest in any contract, transaction, arrangement or any other
kind of proposal put forward to the Board for consideration
abstains from voting on the relevant resolution and such
director is not counted for quorum determination purposes.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman of the
Board also held a meeting with the independent non-
executive directors without the presence of the executive
directors during the year.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance
Liability insurance for directors and senior management
officers of the Group was maintained by the Company with
coverage for any legal liabilities which may arise in the
course of performing their duties. The scope of coverage of
the insurance is subject to review annually.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
All directors should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities and of the conduct and business activities
of the Company. The Company is responsible for
arranging and funding suitable training for its directors.
Accordingly, the Company has put in place a training and
development programme for the directors including: (i)
induction programme on the laws and regulations in relation
to directors and the Company, knowledge and current
development of the Company, responsibilities and potential
liabilities of directors for newly appointed directors; and (ii)
on-going training and professional development programmes
for directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all directors of
the Company have attended the training sessions arranged
by the Company. Newspapers, magazines and other
materials relating to roles and responsibilities of directors,
and regulatory updates of the Listing Rules and corporate
governance development were also provided by the Company
to the directors from time to time.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Chang Chih-Kai, who acted as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, has also appointed as the Chairman of
the Board since May 2017. This was a deviation from code
provision A.2.1.

The Board is of the opinion that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and CEO in Mr. Chang Chih-Kai has the benefit
of ensuring consistent leadership within the Group thus
enabling more effective and efficient strategic planning for
the Group. The Board also believes that the balance of power
and authority will not be compromised and is adequately
ensured by the existing Board which comprises experienced
and competent individuals with more than one-third of the
Board being independent non-executive directors.
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3.9 Board Committees

39 FHEETREY

The Board has established three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, to assist it in overseeing the
Group’s affairs. Each committee has its defined and written
terms of reference setting out its duties, powers and functions
and being posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. The board committees report regularly
to the Board on their decisions and recommendations and
they are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Company as of the date of this
report consists of the following directors:

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Independent non-executive director
Terence (Chairman)

Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai  Independent non-executive director

Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng  Independent non-executive director

The primary functions of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and
reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems, and the compliance with the applicable accounting
principles and practices, any applicable laws and the Listing
Rules and liaison with external auditors and internal auditors
of the Group.

During the financial year, three Audit Committee meetings
were held and the executive directors, the management
and the independent auditors attended to provide necessary
information. The Audit Committee considered the audit plan,
terms of engagement and fees of the independent auditors
for the Board’s approval, reviewed the financial information
of the Group including the annual and interim financial
statements, the management letters and reports issued by the
independent auditor, and the reports on the matters of risk
management and internal control systems prepared by the
Internal Audit Department.

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee of the Company as of the date of
this report consists of the following directors:

Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai  Independent non-executive director
(Chairman)

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Independent non-executive director
Terence

Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng  Independent non-executive director

Mr. Chang Chih-Kai Executive director
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending
suitable candidates to the Board for directorship, after
considering the independence and competence of the
nominees, to ensure that all nominations are fair and
transparent. The Nomination Committee reviews the
structure, size and composition (including skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and assesses the independence
of the independent non-executive directors.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness
of the Board. Pursuant to the Policy, the Company seeks
to achieve board diversity through the consideration of
a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and education background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Policy
and review such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. The Nomination Committee will
review the Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness.

During the financial year, two Nomination Committee
meetings were held. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and diversity of the Board, considered the
independence of independent non-executive directors and
recommended the re-appointment of retiring directors which
were approved by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting. It also made recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of an independent non-executive director during
the year.

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee of the Company as the date of
this report consists of the following directors:

Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng  Independent non-executive director
(Chairman)

Mr. Hon Ping Cho
Terence

Independent non-executive director

Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai  Independent non-executive director
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai Executive director

The Company has adopted the model whereby the
Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
director and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for making recommendations
to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
remuneration of all directors of the Company and senior
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management of the Group and other matters relating to
remuneration. The remuneration of all directors is subject to
regular monitoring by the Remuneration Committee to ensure
that their remuneration and compensation are reasonable.

During the financial year, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the remuneration packages of
executive directors and senior management were reviewed
and considered. They also reviewed the remuneration of the
newly-appointed independent non-executive director. Details
of the remuneration paid/payable to individual director
and the chief executive officer of the Company and senior
management or officers of the Group by band during the year
are set out in Notes 34 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

3.10 Meeting Attendance of Board and Board Committee

Members

The attendance records of each director at the board meetings,
board committee meetings, annual general meeting (AGM) of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in the table below:

o EMERIHMZBFTMERE G2 E
BAREEE > DU (R 387 I 2 A A8 5 B

AR BABCAE B TN 2 B & SR T R &
o FHELEERITERLEREHEAL
ZHARE o BN ZE B IR R RS
SEIEFATE R T o 4E N E A EA A
O FE B N AT AR A A v A
A B B B 2 FR IR R 2 B 4
BB R M EE34 513 -

BEFFREREGHE TZRAGREZY

ik tH R 1% D
PEREZF-NF+H=+—HILHF
JE o ARFBRIT 2 EB GG EEEE
% Bk RO AR R 2 A
S DL Bk A R

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

okt B BT AR
Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
HHE  FHZEE  WAEEE FMZEHE RAEERE
Executive directors HiTEEH
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai Rk 919 22 22 1
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao REELE 919 1
Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun il s
(resigned on 17 January 2020) (ZFEZFFE—F 1L HEHE) 9/9 11
Independent non-executive directors BIHHTEEF
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence B
(appointed on 25 September 2019) (ZFE=NFENHA A HHEIE) 2 11 - - -
Mr. Huang Shun Tsai E 6/9 33 22 22 01
Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng EiP St 6/9 23 12 22 1
Mr. Lee Ted Tak Tai BERLE
(resigned on 30 June 2019) (ZF— 4N A=+ HEHE) 55 11 11 11 11
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance

duties of the Company. Terms of reference adopted by the Board

include the duties of the Board on corporate governance functions

to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on

corporate governance, to review and monitor the training and

continuous professional development of the directors and the

senior management and to review the Group’s compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

51

5.2

Financial Reporting

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group. The
Board, supported by the chief financial officer or financial
controller and the Finance Department, is responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements of the Group.
In the preparation of the financial statements, the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance have
been adopted, the appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied, and reasonable judgments and estimates
are properly made.

The Board aims to present a clear and balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance in the annual and interim
reports to shareholders, and make appropriate disclosure
and announcements in a timely manner. The directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Remuneration of Independent Auditors

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 59 to 66
of this annual report.

The remuneration paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
for the provision of audit for the year ended 31 December
2019 was HK$3,100,000 (2018: HK$4,100,000) and no non-
audit service was rendered (2018: Nil) during the year.

The Audit Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to the appointment,
reappointment or removal of the independent auditors.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the independent auditor of the Company.
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5.3 Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Procedures
have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensuring the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable
financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

An internal audit department has been established to conduct
risk management and internal audit of the Group. It performs
risk-based audits to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems so as to
provide assurance that key business and operational risks are
identified and managed. The work carried out by the Internal
Audit Department reports to the Audit Committee with its
findings and makes recommendations. During the year, the
Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Chun Hay has been the Company Secretary of
the Company since December 2013. Mr. Cheung is a full time
employee of the Group and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Company’s affairs. During the financial year, Mr. Cheung has duly
complied with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

7.1 Communications with Shareholders and Investors
The Board recognises the importance of good communication
with its shareholders and investors. To promote effective
communication, the Company maintains websites at
“www.daphne.com.cn” and “www.daphneholdings.com”
where extensive information and updates on the Group’s
business development and operation, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
available to the public. Shareholders and investors may
address enquires to the Company’s investor relations
personnel by letter, telephone, fax or email. Contact details
are listed on page 3 of this annual report.

The Company continues to enhance communication and
relationship with its shareholders and investors. The
Board designates personnel to maintain regular dialogue
with institutional investors and analysts through one-on-
one meetings, non-deal roadshows and investor briefings,
whenever necessary, to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.

During the year, Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai, the independent non-
executive director was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 May 2019 due to his
unavoidable business engagements. This was a deviation
from code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code.

BEOJE UE BN OBR B R AR A W | 4E 4k 2019 31

5.3 & kEE &W% L
§$@ A 4 1) 2 JEL A B R A B B
f%bﬁﬁﬂ L s o &%»Mﬁmﬂﬁ
B ﬁ#ﬁ%% %ﬁ%%ﬁﬁzﬂ%:
B R AR PR Ak SR e s a4 it A 2T
1 > ﬁﬁT%%ﬁ*ﬁE’Jﬁm 2 il 7E T2 P R [
ERE o LA B A ol IE P R O Bk - ke
A T Wl G s A Bk 2 AR AT DR 11 AT 5 B
LR PR30 A m TR > DA B AR A T
BB~ FR R R -

AN B N AR AL AR > DL AT AR 4
JE B 5 B R TN B A o TR A B AT I
A LB 1 A% i B A 4R ) 2 TR A B

NERE R B2 A IR d 2
A 2 T B BB R AR B o AR A
WL B e WS HEEZ TE > iR
A AR R ER - FN > EFHE O A
A5 8 2 B A B R TR S S AR 2 A e
AT MET o

AR

R EREAEN R - SE T T RERIEAAR
NAEZAFRE - REEBALEERREES
A 3 A 2 T B R S T RS o AR B AR
JE o s SeA RS T BRI AR 3. 20k 1 A B 3
B IHLE

P& % B 17

BB R R B Bz i
ORI LR RV A AR R E AR
ROUF M 2 B B A E
AL A [ www.daphne.com.cn | J
[ www.daphneholdings.com | 4 v} > H i
AR EEEGERIEE  UWHE
B A SEER W R M R B R
e Hn B R > DAHES AT B o JROR KR E
HEAE MR AN AR EERARNB SR
HE - ERHMENERREHAANAZE
W o B AR EORLRE G HUN AR RS -

ENANTEES: B Y W E S P ¥l
LBR - ERGiRERM AR > L7 ZH
@iﬂ*iﬁ‘ &k 3F§%E§@-§&&%%F
I > HERF LA BUE A o A B e 8
uﬁ @Eﬁé’?%ﬂu$%@2%‘§ﬁ

AR AR A E) AL R BUAT I ST
A RIEHAE S o BRI A AR
—HELA =+ =0 A BRI R
& o WY B SR IR T IO A6 71 -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
o AL 8

32

7.2

7.3

Constitutional Documents

For good corporate governance and with an effort to
modernise and update the Company’s constitutional
documents, the Company has adopted the Second Amended
and Restated Articles of Association of the Company upon
the shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting
in May 2019. These constitutional documents are available
on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) with effect from 1 January 2019. According to the
Dividend Policy, in deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account, inter alia, the following factors:

(i) the general financial condition of the Group;

(i1) the Group’s actual and future operations and liquidity
position;

(iii) the Group’s expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

(iv) the Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) the retained profits and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(vi) the shareholders’ and the investors’ expectation and
industry’s norm;

(vii) the general market conditions; and
(viii)any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

Dividends may be declared and paid to the shareholders of
the Company by way of cash or by other means that the Board
considers appropriate. The declaration and payment of a
dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s Articles of Association and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The Board will continually review
the Dividend Policy and reserves the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel
the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company in respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.
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8. JBtHHE A

8.1 Convening Extraordinary General Meeting and 8.1 A4 AR KRG LR BRKE E#R
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings 2R
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the TRIEA L W 2 A0 A T T2 A0 B 25580k » # =R
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit convene an & ] 7E HL B0 5 B E R B PR A R oK o
extraordinary general meeting. Any one or more members Al — MR sk L ERBOR (R A DR AR AT 2
holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the BEBA T2 —) JUHETEFMEFG
Company can make a written requisition to the Board or the B AR R H BRI R R K& - w4 E
Company Secretary to convene an extraordinary general 12 HB R R K 2 B A
meeting. The written requisition must state the objects of the B RS WIEREANFZHBFE
meeting and must be signed by the relevant shareholders and BT > FEHUN AR WER3E -
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong as listed on page 3 of this annual report.
There are no provisions under the Company’s Articles of WRIEAANF 2 A=A RS A
Association or the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, Al E22% (19614 4539801 » B4 IF &
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding ERT) - S A R B SR TR SR K 4 2 A
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at W BRI 2 (P4 N2 R
general meetings other than a proposal of a person for A1) o R AT A 2w T4 B AR AR AT =
election as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures T B B AR T A BRI K -
set out above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for
any business specified in such written requisition.
8.2 Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board 82 MEFFRMAEN

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the R AES R ANFRREEREREANAS
Board by addressing them to the investor relations personnel f5 8% FXRUAEEBELYEFRe
of the Company by letter, telephone, fax or email. Details of B B L o W A R AR A A AF R
the contact information are set out on page 3 of this annual H3H o
report.

On behalf of the board of directors RE#HEEG

Chang Chih-Kai AT A

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer R

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020 HFw X FRE=H +1kLH



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B AL RERHE

34

About this report

Daphne International Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
which together with its subsidiaries, is collectively referred to
as the “Group”) hereby presents its Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) for the year ended 31
December 2019, in accordance with the requirements of the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Group principally engages in the business of retailing
footwear and accessories under its own brands, “Daphne” and
“Shoebox”, and other brands including own brands and brands
under exclusive distributorships. The Group recorded a total
turnover of HK$2,126.4 million in 2019. Unless otherwise stated,
the Report covers the Group’s brands business and operation in
mainland China only which contributes to the majority of the
Group’s turnover. During the financial year, the Group continued
its efforts to rationalise and significantly downscale its directly-
managed stores network, and conversion of the stores into
“partnership system”. As at 31 December 2019, most of the POS
operated in “partnership system” in mainland China. Thus, certain
data in this ESG report refers the operational headquarters only.

The management and staff of the Group’s different functions
were involved in the preparation of the ESG Report. They
assisted the Group in reviewing its operations and identifying
relevant environmental, social and governance issues. The board
of directors (the “Board”) and the management oversee the
Group’s efforts to fulfil its environmental, social and governance
responsibilities and to comply with relevant laws and regulations
to ensure good governance.

The methods used to gather, report and verify information in
the ESG Report are based on the Company’s own processes and
internationally recognised reporting standards.

The direct and indirect greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions were
calculated and reported with reference to the Baseline Emission
Factors for Regional Power Grids in China published by the
Department of Climate Change of National Development and
Reform Commission, and the Greenhouse Gas Protocol published
by World Business Council for Sustainable Development
(WBCSD) and World Resources Institute (WRI).

Carbon dioxide emissions and equivalents are determined on the

basis of measured or estimated energy and fuel usage, multiplied
by relevant carbon emission factors.
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2. Stakeholder Engagement & Materiality Assessment 2. ¥ # S R H R

Communication is an important aspect of our daily operations. WHEERMAEEENEE -] - M ESH
Stakeholder engagement and communication are crucial in R T RO B R R S FIE Y B o
understanding the expectations and priorities of our stakeholders. L R S e < (=S RS N AR N IR
The Group values the opinion of our stakeholders and has thus set F AT AL SRR 2 R R o FRAM O K
up and maintained various communication channels for different TS R R o A 0 A AR R RS Y 32
stakeholder groups. Comments and suggestions are welcomed B o B E W RY I IR AE b > AR I TRHEAT T 3R
as they represent an opportunity to improve the Group and its Biotbg REGHGRAE  MER T - B3
services. Apart from regular communication channels, the Group JE AN A ERAE 45 5 0 L DAASE A 4R 18R] DL 4
has also conducted an environmental, social and governance o RPAGER B ~ AL KR AR Jr TR BB o

survey to collect opinions from employees, management and
external stakeholders, so that the Group can better assess the
materiality of various environmental, social and governance

aspects.
Stakeholder Key Communication Channels
EL XV F G ERE
Shareholders . Announcements and circulars
Jie 3R N B K
. Interim and annual reports
o 3 1 B AR i
. Shareholders’ meetings
& N
. Company websites
NG ER
Customers . Social media platforms such as Weibo, WeChat official accounts and internet
% live-streaming video platforms
AR B BUE - BUE & RSE L R AR SR B RE U B
. Customer hotline
7 AR
. Regular debriefing sessions with frontline staff to collect customer feedback
AR B T 7E B O % 2
Employees . Correspondences, suggestion box
i B Rk~ B A
. Annual performance appraisals
AR BLRE AL
Suppliers and . Business correspondences
subcontractors T 755 15 K
6 JE v B2 43 £ T . Procurement contracts and letters of undertaking
PRI 5 2 JORE
. Performance appraisals
KYLRE AL
Government . Compliance inspections
and regulatory HHmE
authorities . Due submissions
BORE K B4 HE T2
. Conferences and seminars
o VAR
Community and . Press releases and news
public S [ A KT S
I8 R 2 55
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Through the key communication channels and surveys, the Group
has learned that stakeholders are more concerned about the social
and governance aspects. The most concerned topics are as follows:

. Policies and compliance relating to employment and welfare

. Policies and compliance relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards

. implementation and monitoring method relating to
occupational health and safety measures

. Policies and compliance relating to product responsibility
. Policies and compliance relating to anti-corruption

Environmental Protection

As a good corporate citizen, the Group supports environmental
protection so it is committed to using resources wisely and
efficiently. In addition to its compliance with relevant local laws
and regulations governing greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, the Group has also made efforts to minimise
the impact of its business on the environment by implementing
waste and emission reduction initiatives, adopting energy-
efficient operational processes, encouraging its employees to
practice environmentally responsible lifestyles, and promoting
environmental protection among its suppliers.

3.1 Emissions

In general, the major source of the retail business direct
emissions is the truck fleet distributing products from
warehouses to shops across the country. As the Group
outsources almost all product deliveries to its logistics
suppliers, its GHG emissions are mostly indirect and
principally resulted from the electric energy consumption,
water consumption and sewage treatment at its offices,
warehouses and stores. In 2019, the Group’s operation
indirectly generated 1,678 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent (“tCO,e”) (2018: 2,527 tCO,e) from the electric
energy consumption and 36 tCO,e (2018: 45 tCO,e) from the
water consumption and sewage treatment.

In 2019, the Group continued the efforts to integrate its
warehouses to enhance its supply chain management.
It involved closures of several local warehouses and
consolidation of the remaining warehouses. Such actions not
just reduced both the overall distance and time for product
delivery from warehouses to shops, but also helped reduce
carbon footprint of the truck fleet of the Group’s logistics
suppliers. In addition, the Group also integrates its carriers
to increase transportation efficiency, and encourage them to
protect the environment and reduce carbon footprint.
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The Group has optimised the way employees go to
work in 2019, employees are encouraged to take public
transportation. The Shanghai headquarters shuttle service
has been changed to focus on the nearby subway stations
for short-distance transfers. This effectively reduces the
carbon footprint of employees during commute, reduces
smog and emissions, and helps the Group achieve sustainable
development.

With regard to waste, only non-hazardous waste such as
paper, cardboards, used boxes are generated from product
packaging, and domestic waste from the Group’s stores,
warehouses and offices. The Group collects and sorts
recyclable waste, and then forwards it to recycling stations
for centralised recycling. In order to further reduce waste
emissions, the Group has used reusable crates made
of environmental-friendly material for packaging and
circulation of goods in the warehouses in 2019.

With the outsourcing of the supply chain warehouse, the
processing of carton boxes has been basically shifted to
centralised processing and circulation by the outsourced
service providers. The non-circulated waste paper products
are uniformly recycled by local environmental protection
agencies. In 2019, since the Group’s logistics warehouse has
been outsourced, the number of waste carton boxes directly
recycled by the Group has decreased significantly. During the
year, the Group forwarded over 6,940 kg (2018: 34,400 kg)
of used carton boxes to local agents for recycling.

During the year, the Group continued to adopt “Office
Automation”, which is an online office administration
system, and to implement paperless office initiatives. The
consumption of paper reduced from 5.4 tonnes in 2018 to 3.6
tonnes in 2019.
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3.2 Use of Resources

The Group’s policy is to comply with relevant laws and
regulations relating to the efficient use of resources,
including energy and water. The Group has also implemented
efficiency improvement initiatives in its energy and water
consumption, which are listed in the table below.

3.2

IR BE

A A R ) R SRR A OR) R (L RE TR
K J5 TS5 A B IE AR o AR BTN
Jits 75 RE YR AN I 7K J7 T 1) % 6 5 T B A - A
TR

Reduction in Energy Consumption 14> i I 14 #£

Offer shuttle bus service to employees for commutes to city area

Offices and .
Warehouses W] B B AL AR 2R T I ) 4 B
WA KH .

Rearrange seating plan to reduce energy consumption in the office

BT 2 P R L 3R DA BB D A 3 Y BE U AR

Reduce the number of lifts in operation during off-peak hours

B0 IR F Ry BUE AT B9 R AR B H

Put up signs in offices to encourage employees to use stairways instead of taking lifts
TEHE A ARG > S B TR MRS > 3D 55 ofe T #b

Regulate the use of air conditioning in accordance with the weather

R TR S A i 2 o L U 4 2 B

Arrange regular cleaning of air filters of the air conditioning system

2P W e T R AR I

Switch off non-essential lighting and electronic office equipment, such as personal
computers when out of office

B8] P A A0 2 1) BROB B R T M o 9 T AR R PR RN

Control lighting and air conditioning under the zoning system

A3 1 12 1) BR W) % 22 T R A
JEJBE LR T i GELED IR WA A 4%

B TR A 6o WDt

. Adopt energy-saving LED illumination system for showrooms
. Promote teleconferencing to reduce business travel

. Remind employees of environmental practices such as reduction in consumption of water,
paper, and energy by email periodically

I] B T 399 % 908 BR 5 O ol 1) 7R R 4R S AN K - AR T S

Stores .

Most of the stores adopt energy-saving LED lighting
i il R 22 O & $% I LED i fE 4 9

. Adjust lighting and air conditioning during off-peak hours
TE AT Ry B 67 IR B B Z2 9 e

Reduction in Water Consumption ¥ 2> ¥ 7K

W BT K R AT - LAAR T KO

. Toilet flushing system has been modified to improve efficiency of water usage

The main resources used by the Group include electricity
(indirect consumption) and water. In 2019, the total
electricity consumption by the Group was 2,588,341 kilowatt
hours (2018: 3,379,304 kilowatt hours), with an energy
intensity of 1,217 kilowatt hours (2018: 819 kilowatt hours)
per million dollars of revenue; the total water consumption
was 76,792 cubic metres (2018: 83,934 cubic metres), with
a water intensity of 36 cubic metres (2018: 20 cubic metres)
per million dollars of revenue.
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In 2019, the packaging materials used by the Group were
mainly shoe boxes, packing papers, carton boxes, reaching a
total of 1,389 tonnes (2018: 4,148 tonnes) with an intensity
of 0.2 kg (2018: 0.3 kg) of packing materials used per pair of
shoes on average.

The Group has pledged to reduce excess product packaging
by adopting the following measures in recent years:

. Having the warranty card, caring instructions and
certificate of quality control directly printed onto shoe
boxes

. Shifting from plastic to paper as packing of shoes

. Providing customers with non-woven reusable shopping
bags

In 2019, the Group has complied with relevant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s most significant impact on the environment
relates to carbon emissions that resulted from the
consumption of electricity at its shops, warehouses and
offices. The following are some of the measures adopted by
the Group to minimise its impact on the environment and
natural resources:

. We have adopted “Office Automation”, which is an
online office administration system, since 2015 to build
a paperless office environment

. Assign a photocopy metering account to each employee
to discourage photocopying

. Default photocopiers to two-sided copying mode and
black-and-white printing mode

. Recycle used A4 papers for one-sided printing for
internal use

. Promote electronic communication, such as emails
and online instant communication tool, as the major
communication channel

. Plant more greenery in the open and indoor space

. Implement waste classification according to relevant
local waste management regulations

3.3

A TR JUAE > AR S [ A Y A 2E M R
FE A LA A > LT 1,389
ME (T — N4 @ 4,148M8) > 5 8 ¥ U7 0
B LS AR 2 4 B 0.2 8 T (& — )\
0.3AJT)

A% G T R R D0 R R ) E R > IR
AR PR LA 1 it

o RER - REHY LGS H
fE#ER L
o PR Y R R L W U AR

o TR PR AT O BRE T A I T A )
s

AR JUE S AR BT EAEEA
FOR R B0 TR A Bl i e S A o

RERRKAER
A A% 1 3B B 5 34 A K 114 B R L

0 TR B kO = T R B AR B PR o B

A G 1 5 U800 S BRERN B AR R S B

PRIt - BT

o EBMA-EF-HFEEEEMIMHLAEA
AL IERATER A > DL ST AR L Y
TN BRI

o BB TR B B BRI IR
5o LASC D 4 D

o HEDBETHEE 2 R ITEN K B AT El
5N

o TRETOAE B A A [T AT ED A9 A4AR

o HEBLAE T B R AR b B A TR
S5 T el oy A 2 T B R

o TERMEIMGZEH KB N HETE 2 AL

o PRPRE MO AR B L IR R G 1 E AT B 3K
vigs|



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B AL RERHE

4.

40

Social Responsibilities
4.1 Employment

The Group considers its employees as one of its most
important assets, and that they are instrumental in the success
of the Group’s operations and maintaining its leading position
in the industry. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had about
948 (2018: 8,700) employees, most of whom were working in
mainland China. The decrease in number of employees was
due to the large scale restructuring and transformation of the
business model.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group recruits and
promotes staff according to such criteria as business needs,
personal qualifications, experience and performance, and the
decisions will under no circumstances be influenced by an
applicant’s or employee’s race, gender, age, marital status,
disability, religious beliefs and nationality. The Group adopts
a policy of zero tolerance of any discrimination, harassment
or vilification in the workplace in accordance with relevant
local laws and regulations. The Group also strives to provide
its employees with a safe and healthy working environment
and career development opportunities.

The Group endeavours to offer competitive compensation
packages and benefits to attract, retain and motivate talents.
Working hours, overtime payments, holidays, statutory paid
leaves and related benefits are in line with the local labour
laws and regulations, as well as respective employment
contracts. Key performance indicators (“KPI”) are set for
individuals and business units to align staff performance
with the Group’s goals. Various performance incentives,
including sales commissions and bonuses, discretionary
performance bonus, share options, profit-sharing schemes,
and other reward and retention schemes are offered to staff
in recognition of their contribution and as motivation for
better performance. The total employee benefit expenses of
the Group amounted to HK$582.9 million (2018: HK$752.3
million) for the year of 2019.
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Staff Welfare and Benefits

The Group spends extra efforts to ensure a safe and
healthy workplace for all staff while overtime work is not
encouraged. The Group also provides a variety of staff
welfare and benefits so that staff can enjoy working with the
Group and perform to their best. These include:

. Free shuttle bus services
. Subsidy to lunch at staff canteens
. Staff coupons for purchase of house brand products

A series of policies, operating manuals, employee handbook
and protocols are in place to build a fair and healthy working
environment. The Employee Handbook and the Code of
Conduct signed by all employees list out policies, guidelines
and procedures to ensure mutual respect between the Group
and its staff by clarifying the Group’s expectation about
the staff’s conduct, and promote a harmonious working
environment. Some of the policies and guidelines include:

. Equal opportunities and anti-discrimination policy — to
ensure that the workplace is free from discrimination
and harassment in any form

. Guideline on confidentiality — to ensure proper handling
of the Group’s confidential information

The above-mentioned policies, guideline, handbook and
code of conduct are reviewed from time to time and updated
as necessary by the Group’s Human Resources Department,
Internal Audit Department and Legal Department.

The Group’s policies on human resources comply with
applicable legislation on labour, including the Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China and Labour Contract Law of
the People’s Republic of China.

In 2019, the Group has complied with all relevant
employment laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group.
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Composition of the Workforce at a Glance H T4 e W2
The following charts refer to staff as at 31 December 2019, TEE®R -F-FET A=+ "HWE
most of whom were working in mainland China. RN S DA 5 N
By Gender By Type of Employment Contract By Age
kR 08 0 £ 1 2800 R4 i

B Female 7% . .
11-
W Full-time £ B 25 and below 255K &% AT
W Male 5 B Part-time Felik
I 26-35 26-351%
W 36-45 36-455%
46 and above 465 M A b
4.2 Staff Development and Training 4.2 B IR R
To remain competitive, the Group enhances the staff’s 7 S A o e LB TR LI g Rl A
capabilities by offering our staff training and opportunities IR BRI B R o B T T AERE 145
for career development and personal growth. Relevant BT DUAERFH BT o A% 5 AR
training courses are tailored to staff members at different Je A B R A BE B R ARRR > DA A A
levels to help them realise their potential and improve their 1)V HE A5 DA BENIE $2 TH R B o 8 I A A
performance. This has turned them into a major force that B2y SRR AR B SRS AT AR A R E )
supports the Group in its sustainable development. Z— o
The Group has formulated a comprehensive training and Fh T HECR B L8 B N B B 70 2 1Y E RN
development programme for its sales staff to ensure that each Al I B4R A R B > AR 2 H B A
of them is equipped with adequate product knowledge and Bl E T 5EE N RS RS 4w £
perform to their best in order to provide customers with a PR A T B 1 0 R R IR o

satisfactory shopping experience and service.
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. Quarterly training in seasonal product knowledge was
carried out in 2019 for each of the Group’s brands.

. Apart from the traditional training courses, e-learning
platform enabled by mobile application was introduced
to let staff have immediate access to training materials.

The Group constantly reviews the support that it gives to
the staff’s career development so as to align the content and
media formats of the training programmes with the talents’
needs and to equip them to better serve the increasing
sophisticated customers. During the year, 17,636 hours
(2018: 54,220 hours) of training were provided for the
Group’s frontline and supporting staff. The average training
hours completed per staff is 2.0 hours (2018: 7.7 hours).

Health and Safety

The Group ensures compliance with all local employment
regulations and labour laws relating to occupational health
and safety such as the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases of the People’s Republic of China, the
Law on the Protection of Production Safety of the People’s
Republic of China and the Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurance, and it places emphasis on safeguarding
employees’ health and safety.

Health and safety statistics for 2019:

. Zero case of fatality due to workplace accidents (2018:
ZEero case)

. 7 cases of work-related injuries (2018: 35 cases)

. 853 lost days due to work-related injuries (2018: 1,891
lost days)

In addition to compliance with the fire safety requirements
for the office premises, the Group conducts fire drills and
training in the use of basic fire-fighting facilities once a year.
Posters and notices are posted in warehouses and offices to
enhance the staff’s awareness of relevant health and safety
guidelines. The Group also provides the employees with
safety training for moving goods.

In 2019, the Group has complied with all relevant health and
safety laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group.
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4.4

4.5

Labour Standards

The Group strictly adheres to the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Labour Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China, Provisions on the Prohibition of Child
Labour and the Law of Protection of Minors of the People’s
Republic of China to prohibit child and forced labour.

Prior to confirmation of employment, the Group’s human
resources department requires job applicants to provide
a valid identity document to verify that the applicants are
lawfully employable, and ensures full compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that prohibit child and forced
labour. Furthermore, staff who have been subjected to
unfair treatment can report to the Group according to the
whistleblowing policy.

In 2019, the Group had no non-compliance cases reported in
relation to labour laws and regulations that prohibit child and
forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

The Group adopts a stringent supplier management system to
meet its business goals, achieve sustainable development and
fulfil its responsibility as a corporate citizen. The supplier
management system includes a careful screening process
and comprehensive KPI-based assessment. The KPIs include
research and development capability, production flow and
scheduling, product cost, reliability of delivery and quality of
bulk production. The Group constantly reviews its KPI-based
assessment system with the aim of improving the quality of
its suppliers.

In addition to the assessment of the suppliers’ production
capability, the Group also assesses their environmental and
social impact as part of the Group’s process of selecting
suppliers. This is to ensure that the Group’s suppliers do not
commit serious violations, including but not limited to child
labour, forced overtime work, illegal discharge of sewage and
hazardous chemicals, illicit and unauthorised reselling.

Most of the Group’s suppliers are located in mainland China.
The Group maintains close communication with its suppliers
through regular meetings. The Group also conducts annual
reviews of its suppliers and performs inspections of the
suppliers’ factories from time to time.

Throughout the years, the Group has established solid and
stable relationships with its long-term suppliers.
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4.6 Product Responsibility 4.6 B EATL

The Group’s products are in compliance with the PRC’s
laws and regulations relating to health and safety, as well as
quality management, including the Product Quality Law of
the People’s Republic of China and the Consumer Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and no legal case
of the Group’s products violating these regulations was
recorded during the year under review.

Quality Control

The Group attaches great importance to product safety and
quality, which are fundamental to what the Group offers its
customers. As part of the Group’s commitment to product
safety and quality, all its products go through stringent
quality control, and those that pass are packed together with
certificates. To offer its customers reassurance on the quality
of its products, the Group provides warranties and aftersales
services such as return of goods, replacement of defective
goods, or repair, in line with the local authority’s regulations.

Regarding the recall of defective products, the Group has
formulated a set of standards and procedures and requires
its staff who are responsible for quality assurance or sales
operation or are working at other related departments to
strictly follow the guidelines. The Group believes that under
no circumstances should consumers’ health and safety be
compromised.

No case of product recall related to issues of health and safety
was recorded during the year under review.

Customer Service

It is the Group’s priority to let customers have an enjoyable
shopping experience. It places great emphasis on recognising
the needs of its customers, matching them with desirable
products, undertaking relevant quality assurance measures
and ultimately delivering excellent services.
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To ensure that its offerings meet the customers’ needs, the
Group has established multiple channels to help it anticipate
customers’ needs and for customers to provide their feedback.
These include:

o Social media platforms such as Weibo, WeChat official
accounts and internet live-streaming video platforms

. Customer reviews on e-commerce platforms
. Customer hotline
. Big data analytics applied to VIP members

. Regular debriefing sessions with frontline staff to
collect customer feedback

. Adoption of business intelligence to analyse customer
preferences and trends

The Group has established a well-defined customer feedback
protocol to allow its customer service centre and sales
operation team to respond to and resolve issues in relation to
product and service quality in the most appropriate manner
and on a timely basis.

A total of 9,846 (2018: 2,289) customer support cases were
reported in 2019, the increase in number of cases was due
to increase in online sales ratio, therefore the number of
replacement/return requests and courier related inquiries also
increased. Nevertheless, the Group will continue to strive
for further improvement in its product quality and customer
service.

A number of programmes are implemented and reinforced to
enhance customers’ shopping experience:

. Shop KPI: The scores for customer service are included
as part of the KPI-based assessment of all shops.

. Customer Loyalty Programme: “Store Empowerment
Tool”, as a platform for the Group’s customer loyalty
program, provides exclusive shopping guides to
its VIP customers, with timely service feedback
and communication, exclusive offers and rewards,
and information on the latest products and member
activities. After the “Store Empowerment Tool” has
been running since early 2019, the proportion of
member sales has increased from 36% to 47%, and the
repurchase rate has increased from 19% to 24%. In
addition, we have issued Wechat Store coupon to offline
physical store customers to redirect them to Daphne’s
Wechat Store.
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Protection of Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to protecting and enforcing its
intellectual property rights which are crucial in maintaining
its industry leadership and sustainable development. The
measures that the Group has taken include registration and
renewal of the Group’s trademarks and filing oppositions to
the registration of trademarks which are identical or similar to
that of the Group.

Regarding online anti-counterfeiting, in 2019, through
the Group’s complaints to intellectual property protection
platform on Alibaba and Pinduoduo, the authenticity rate
of Daphne remained above 95% on Taobao and Tmall, and
the authenticity rate of top 100 sales products of Daphne on
Pinduoduo reached above 90%. The Group also proactively
filed civil lawsuits for selling counterfeit products of its
brands, 19 civil lawsuits were brought against infringement
sellers on the Pinduoduo platform, and 3 civil lawsuits were
brought against Taobao infringement sellers.

Employees are bound by the Group’s Code of Conduct
to keep trade secrets confidential and to protect its other
proprietary intellectual properties. The Group believes that
it has taken effective measures to protect its intellectual
property rights.

Customer Data Protection and Privacy

The Group is committed to abiding by the Law on the
Protection of Consumers’ Rights and Interests of the People’s
Republic of China and endeavours to protect customers’
rights, interest and privacy. Customer information collected
will only be used for the purposes of the conduct of the
Group’s business. The Group prohibits the provision
of consumers’ information to any third party without
authorisation from the customers. All collected personal data
is kept strictly confidential.
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4.7

4.8

Anti-corruption Policies

The Group advocates a high standard of business integrity
throughout its operations and has no toleration of corruption
or bribery in any form. The Group strictly adheres to the laws
and regulations on corruption and bribery in all locations
where the Group is conducting business such as the Criminal
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Laws of the People’s
Republic of China against Unfair Competition, the Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery. The Group has
formulated and strictly enforced its anti-corruption policies
as stipulated in the Group’s Code of Conduct, such as policy
on gifts and entertainment, policy on conflict of interests
and guidance on prevention of bribery, to manage possible
conflicts of interest and prevent bribery.

Employees are required to abide by the Group’s Code of
Conduct by signing a statement to acknowledge receipt of the
Code of Conduct and agree to abide by its terms. In addition,
every new staff member receives anti-corruption training.
The Group’s management will investigate any suspicious
or unlawful conduct involving bribery, extortion, fraud or
money laundering to protect the Group’s interests.

Furthermore, the Group has set up a whistleblowing
policy to enable its employees to lodge complaints or
report misconducts and any suspicious activities within
the organisation to the designated officer in either verbal
or written form. The Group advocates a mechanism
of confidentiality to protect the whistle-blowers from
retaliation. Where criminality is suspected after investigation,
disciplinary actions will be taken, including termination
of employment and reporting wrongdoing to the relevant
authorities.

There was no legal case reported in regard to bribery, fraud,
extortion or money laundering during the year under review.

Community Investment

As a corporate citizen in China, the Group is committed to
contributing to a brighter future of China by helping the less
fortunate in society. The Group participates in community
events from time to time, and to the improvement of
community well-being and social services. We also support
and encourage staff to actively participate in a wide range of
charitable events outside working hours, to raise awareness
and concern for the community, and to inspire more people to
take part in serving the community.

The Group did not have any specific activities in relation to
community engagement and donation during the year under
review. In the coming year, the management shall review
policies in relation to community investment and explore the
feasibility of increasing community investment activities.
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The directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Principal activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
distribution and retailing of footwear and accessories in mainland
China.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by reportable
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and
Analysis, Corporate Governance Report and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of this annual report.

Results and appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 144.

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019.

Donations
There was no charitable and other donations made by the Group during
the year (2018: HK$591,000).

Property, plant and equipment and investment properties
Movements in property, plant and equipment and investment properties
of the Group are set out in Notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Share capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2019, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$577,629,000 (2018: HK$735,853,000). Movements
in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are
set out in Notes 28 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

Equity-Linked agreements

Other than the Company’s share option schemes as disclosed in the
“share option scheme” section, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of
the year.
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Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Five-year financial summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 6 of this annual report.

Purchase, sale or redemption of shares
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chang Chih-Kai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao
Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun (resigned on 17 January 2020)
Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (appointed on 25 September 2019)
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai
Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng
Mr. Lee Ted Tak Tai (resigned on 30 June 2019)
In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao and Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence shall retire
from the office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Both Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun and Mr. Lee Ted Tak Tai have
confirmed that they have no disagreement with the board of directors
and nothing relating to the affairs of the Company needed to be brought
to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

All the independent non-executive directors have confirmed their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and based
on such confirmations, the Company is of the opinion that the
independence status of the independent non-executive directors remains
intact as at 31 December 2019.

Biographies of directors and senior management
Brief biographies of directors and senior management are set out on
pages 19 to 20 of this annual report.

Directors’ service contracts

The term of directorship of each non-executive director, including
independent non-executive directors, is one year to three years and the
term will continue for a successive period of one year to three years
unless terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice
to the other party.
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None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
and contracts

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company and the director’s connected party had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Interests of directors and chief executive

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of each
director and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the
Part XV of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:
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Mr. Chang Chih-Kai Personal interest - 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.36
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respect of share options granted to the directors.

2. Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun has beneficial interest in 174,908,895 shares in
the Company through Top Glory Assets Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, in which Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun holds one-half
of the equity interest. He also has personal interest in 1,600,000 shares of the
Company.
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Save as disclosed above and the “share option scheme” section, as at
31 December 2019, none of the directors or chief executive, nor any of
their associates (including their spouses and children under 18 years of
age), had any interests in, or had been granted, or exercised, any rights
to subscribe for shares of the Company, its specified undertakings and
its other associated corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the
SFO.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its subsidiaries,
its fellow subsidiaries, its parent company or its other associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors and
chief executive of the Company (including their spouses and children
under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or short position in shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its specified
undertakings or other associated corporations.

Interests of substantial shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2019, the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the
Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in addition to those
disclosed above in respect of the directors and chief executive.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:

B B SR TR A st 3 ) — 6 BT S g  4h - i =%
—NET A=t H s FEFKETTHABRK
105 2 AR 88N (BL36 55 2 IC A8 S 185 L T 2
T ) MR AT SO AT B AT R AR A\ - HAE
A 3 Je FCRH B ¥ ) 2 FBe 0y 22 A A HEE R T ZE AR 52 8 75
Fe B0 B e 94 o B % -

TRAE AT ATIRE ] - A2y a] ~ HAT AR g 28 7] - HLAL S
T A~ AR OY ] A R B i AR 4R T S AT A &
Pr> SRR R ER R EEATHAR (B85 2 i
{8 B A8BE LA T 2 40) FA A 4w A B A 2 R
ARG P BBy~ R B Py AR O < M R BOR AT o

EX Y el ¥

e A0y RIAR AR TS S B B R 1S X VIR SR 3361 2 B
SE A B 2 EBRACE MR - i = F — U
ToA=T R AR R CEME T AR
i SR (BUAG A W B AT B AS %k DA 1) » 1E4F
R N0 N GG DL E BT iR A B S R AT R
M4 o

T AR 2 RS KA B e Ay 2 5

Approximate

Total % of total

Name of shareholders Capacity interests issued shares

FoR i g

JB 3R 44 Hh 5ty BE 45 Gt JB& A H 41 kb

Lucky Earn International Limited Beneficial interests 400,719,995 (Note 1) 24.30
4 B A (Bt 5E—)

Top Glory Assets Limited Beneficial interests 174,908,895 (Note 2) 10.61
jogxi o (fEE=)

Ms. Chen Jennifer Yi-Chen Interests of controlled corporation 174,908,895 (Note 2) 10.61
BREER & 1 ZHEA T MR (B3

Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun Interests of controlled corporation 179,508,895 (Note 2) 10.88
GEEEIP S and personal interest (B 5E—)

RN ) 2 RE i B AR CHRE i

Pushkin Holding Limited Beneficial interests 147,740,920 (Note 3) 8.96
T 4 B A (Bt 5E=)

Mr. Chen Ying-Che Interests of controlled corporation 147,740,920 (Note 3) 8.96
PR3 S AR ZYEN T 2 ME A (F5E=)

Mr. Chen Ying-Chieh Interests of controlled corporation 147,740,920 (Note 3) 8.96
PR 5 A S AR TR A 2 HEAR (Bt 5E=)

Mr. Chen Ying-Tien Interests of controlled corporation 147,740,920 (Note 3) 8.96
ol e it St 2 ZYEN T 2 HE A (B EE=)
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Notes:

1. Mr. Chang Chih-Kai, the Chairman of the board of directors, Chief Executive
Officer and an executive director of the Company, and Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao,
an executive director of the Company, and their two sisters have beneficial
interests of 26%, 26% and 24% each, respectively, in Lucky Earn International
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

2. Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun, an executive director of the Company, and Ms.
Chen Jennifer Yi-Chen have beneficial interests of 50% each in Top Glory
Assets Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. By virtue
of the SFO, they are deemed to be interested in 174,908,895 shares of the
Company held by Top Glory Assets Limited.

3. Mr. Chen Ying-Chieh, an ex-director of the Company, and his two brothers, Mr.
Chen Ying-Che and Mr. Chen Ying-Tien, each has one-third of the beneficial
interests of Pushkin Holding Limited. By virtue of the SFO, they are deemed
to be interested in the 147,740,920 shares of the Company held by Pushkin
Holding Limited.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had
not been notified by any person (other than directors and chief executive
of the Company) of any interest and short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share option scheme

On 29 May 2003, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“Old Scheme”), which expired on 28 May 2013. Upon expiry of the
Old Scheme, no further share options could be granted under the Old
Scheme but, in all other respects, the provisions of the Old Scheme shall
remain in force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of
any share option granted prior to the expiry of the Old Scheme.

On 27 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
was approved by shareholders of the Company and adopted by the
Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the New Scheme
will remain in force for 10 years from the date of adoption.

The purpose of the New Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to eligible participants, including any full-time or part-time
employees, executives, officers, directors of the Group and any advisers,
consultants, agents, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other
persons at the discretion of the board of directors, as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the New Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue on 27 August 2013, the date of approval
and adoption of the New Scheme unless shareholders’ approval has
been obtained. The shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company at any time
shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.
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The total number of shares available for issue under the New Scheme is
145,824,238 which is approximately 8.84% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of shares issuable under the New Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to each eligible participant
within any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant unless shareholders’ approval
has been obtained. Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their associates shall
be subject to prior approval by the independent non-executive directors.
Share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company or any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue or with an
aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
shall be subject to prior approval by shareholders of the Company.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an option
shall be determined by the board of directors and specified in the
letter to the grantee, which may be varied by the board of directors in
accordance with the terms of the New Scheme, provided that it shall not
under any circumstances exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option. The board of directors may, in its discretion, determine
the time or period when the right to exercise the option in respect of all
or some of the shares the subject of the option will vest.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the board of
directors and must not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

The offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted within 30 days

from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of

HKS$1 in total by the grantee.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’” meetings.
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During the year, 10,010,000 (2018: 27,815,000) share options were  4F A » 4 Al 410,010,000 (=& — /\4FE 1 27,815,000)
lapsed but no (2018: Nil) share options were granted, cancelled or 2% » {HIfF M8 (= F — /\4F - I8) BERRERZ - E 4y
exercised. Details of movements of the share options granted under the — BAT{H o 4 (A - R 5 I B M 5 ) 52 HF 2 IS B 22 3

share option scheme during the year were as follows: FRElEaTr
Lapsed
Dateof  Exercise price  Outstanding at during Outstanding at 31
Grantees grant per share 1 January 2019 the year  December 2019 Exercisable period
R %
i il ~H=H RS ES A )
L3N oA ﬁﬁ% A AT B V34 W AAT B 6 1
y yy/ m/dd) HKS (yyyy/mm/dd)
(/1 T (/H/8)
(i) Executive directors H {7 E %
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai % 8 5 /£ 2017/01/25 0.70 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 2017/01/25 - 2027/01/24
(Note 1) (Fit#—)
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao 5% %] & %4 2017/01/25 0.70 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 2017/01/25 - 2027/01/24
(Note 1) (fif7E—)
Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun [ {7 8 %6 4 2017/01725 0.70 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 2017/01/25 - 2027/01/24
(resigned on 17 January 2020) (Note 1) ( Mzt —)

F-EEF- AT EAR)
(i) Consultants 1

In aggregate & it 2010/01/27 6.19 8,400,000 - 8400000 2011/01/27-2020/01/26
(Note 2) (HHzE =)

(iii) ~ Employees fE5

In aggregate A it 2010/01/27 6.19 3,780,000 (3,480,000) 300,000 2011/01/27 - 2020/01/26
(Note 3) (Fff3E=)

In aggregate & it 2010/07/22 761 300,000 - 300000 2011/04/01 - 2020/07/21
(Note 4) (i zE )

In aggregate A it 2014/01/21 450 1,000,000 (800,000) 200,000 2016/01/21 - 2024/01/20
(Note 5) (Pff 3k 1)

In aggregate & it 2014/01/21 450 260,000 (180,000) 80,000 2017/01/21 - 2024/01/20
(Note 6) (FfzE75)

In aggregate 4 7 2017/01/25 0.70 8,250,000 (5,250,000) 3,000,000 2017/01/25 - 2027/01/24
(Note 1) (FzE—)

In aggregate & it 2017/01/25 0.70 400,000 (300,000) 100,000 2017/01/25 - 2027/01/24
(Note 7) (MzE-E)

34,390,000 (10,010,000 24,380,000

Notes: Wif&E

1. The share options shall vest one-third each year from the date of grant. — - JERAEd R R R = —

2. 15% of the total of 12,000,000 share options shall vest on each of the four -~ #5}12,000,0007 (1 I B AE i 352 1 F 30 0L 51 170 330 48 H 45
anniversary dates of the date of grant and 40% of the share options shall vest on EETE15% > HARA0% A 1 H WL EAE FEE A B S o

the fifth anniversary date of the date of grant.

[1l

SR PR HRE o 2 L SO R A AT AR B TR 20% o

3. 20% of the share options shall vest on each of the five anniversary dates of the
date of grant.

4. One-third of the share options shall vest on each anniversary with the first Mo REEREH F—— A — B A H A

tranche starting on 1 April 2011. S
5. 100% of the share options shall vest after two years from the date of grant. Foo o W RORE 2 H O RE ST 4R 4R B 100% o
6. 100% of the share options shall vest after three years from the date of grant. N WERORE B4R AR T = AR AR B 100% ©

7. 100% of the share options shall vest on the date of grant. L IR H W 100% ©
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Share appreciation rights plan

The Group implemented a share appreciation rights plan (“SAR Plan”)
to motivate and award the directors, employees, advisers, consultants,
agents, suppliers, customers, distributors and such other persons of the
Company and the Group at the discretion of the board of directors for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Under this SAR Plan, share appreciation rights (“SARs”) are granted in
units with each unit representing one ordinary share of the Company.
No share will be issued under the SAR Plan. The eligible recipients who
are granted with such incentive do not actually hold the shares, and do
not have any rights as the shareholders such as voting rights or rights to
dividends. Therefore, this does not affect the total number of the shares
of the Company outstanding and will not result in any dilution effect on
the shares of the Company.

Upon exercise of the SARs, the eligible recipients will receive, subject
to any applicable tax, a cash payment amount equal to the product of
the number of SARs exercised and the difference between the exercise
price and market price of the Company’s shares at the date of exercise.
The Company recognises compensation expense of the SARs over the
applicable vesting period.

Under the SAR Plan, the exercise price of the SAR shall be determined
by the board of directors and must not be less than the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant;

(b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

The SARs granted pursuant to the SAR Plan are valid for 10 years from
the date of grant and upon the expiry of which all unexercised SARs
shall automatically lapse.

Under the terms of the grant, the outstanding SARs are subjected to a

vesting period of one to three years from the date of grant. The exercise
price is from HK$4.50 to HK$6.19 per unit.
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During the year, 1,560,000 (2018: 130,000) SARs were lapsed and no
SARs (2018: Nil) were granted, cancelled or exercised under the SAR
Plan. Details of the movements in the SARs granted under the SAR Plan
during the year were as follows:

BEOOE R OB MR oM M A B oW | 4 E 2019 BY

EN > 1,560,000 (T — \AE 1 130,000) 3 B4y 1
(EREIC S > FLAG M (2 — )\ AF © 4% B3 338 (B HEE AR
PR B RE T B B2 1~ BESN AT - AR > MRIE
13 38 (A ME 5T 342 1 2 ey W (E RE 2 B2 B RE s a1 -

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
at 1 January during at 31 December
Grantees 2019 the year 2019
/AR a1 2 B EJUE
—A—H +oA=+—n
ZI: TN i A AT 1 AR R i A A7 8
(i)  Executive directors HITEFH
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai g A Bl AE A4 5,475,000 - 5,475,000
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao o B & e A 4,725,000 - 4,725,000
Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun PR 16 T 5 AR
(resigned on 17 January 2020) (i =B —H AL HEHE) 2,000,000 — 2,000,000
(ii) Employees A
In aggregate &5k 5,860,000 (1,560,000) 4,300,000
18,060,000 (1,560,000) 16,500,000
Management contracts BHEH

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The aggregate sales during the year attributable to the Group’s largest
and five largest customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total
turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 21% and 49%,
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases during the year.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital, had an interest in the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

RN AR R T S BRT A AR AT B AR A W R
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R AEHRRKEF MAREF 28885 IEAR
SEE 2 s RV TR30% »

FETR > AR A ] i A K 06 RE B R LR L R AR S 2 4R
WS AR RIS AR B ) 2 SR B AL RE 4921% S 49% -

FHE S S BN L SR S P AL
5% A L AR 2 ATATA 2 R R - MRS AT A4 B T
R AR P A ] B i A



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
oG

Permitted Indemnity Provision

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, the directors and officers of the Group shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company from or against
all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them may incur or sustain in or about the execution of their duty
in their offices. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force
during the financial year and up to the date of this report. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the directors and officers of the Group.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company throughout
the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float of more than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the board of directors

Chang Chih-Kai
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7. o B b e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DAPHNE
INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Daphne International Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 67 to 144, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

(i) Assessment of going concern assumption in preparing the
consolidation financial statements

(i1)) Provisions for impairment of inventories

(i) Assessment of going concern assumption in preparing
the consolidated financial statements

Nature of the Key Audit Matter
Refer to Note 2.1(i) to the consolidated financial statements

The Group recorded a loss of HK$1,096,426,000 (20138:
HK$1,010,193,000) and a net cash generated from operating
activities of HK$218,129,000 (2018: net cash used in operating
activities of HK$157,781,000) for the year ended 31 December
2019. The Group’s cash used in lease payments for the year
ended 31 December 2019 of HK$270,991,000 is classified and
included in cash used in financing activities upon the adoption
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Note 17). As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had cash and cash equivalents of HK$182,059,000 (2018:
HK$186,521,000).

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 in early
2020 (“the COVID-19 outbreak™), a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across mainland China, such as extension of the Chinese New Year
holiday and certain restrictions and controls over travelling of
people. Such precautionary and control measures have limited the
normal operations of the Group in mainland China, especially the
opening of its retail stores and also severely affected the consumer
sentiment. If the present situation in respect of the COVID-19
outbreak continued and the restrictions and control measures are
prolonged, the Group’s operation performance and cash flow may
be negatively affected.

In view of such circumstances, in order to support the going
concern basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements,
management prepared a cash flow projection of the Group
covering a period not less than twelve months from 31 December
2019. Based on the cash flow projection which has been prepared
after taking into account various measures and plans undertaken
by the Group, management concluded that there will be sufficient
financial resources for the Group to finance its future operations
and enable it to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall
due in the next twelve months from 31 December 2019.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7. o B b e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

(i) Assessment of going concern assumption in preparing

I3 ¢ 7 Wt = IR (A)
() 45 88 A 15 T 85 i 3 v e A B B M T A

the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Nature of the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

The directors of the Company considered the assumptions used
in cash flow projections prepared by management and the basis
of management’s plans and measures. They also assessed the
Group’s ability to generate adequate cash flows from its operation,
the reasonably possible changes in the operational performance,
the reasonably possible impact of the COVID-19 outbreak to the
Group’s operations and the estimated cash inflow to be generated
from disposals of non-core properties to conclude whether it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis.

We focused on this area due to consideration of future events and
significant management judgment and estimates involved.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s estimation and
judgment applied in assessing the appropriateness of the going
concern assumption and disclosure made by management
included:

. Obtaining the cash flow projection prepared by management
and discussing with senior management to understand the
current operation, the future operation plan, the latest impact
on the operation due to the COVID-19 outbreak, the expected
performance, the planned capital expenditure, and the future
source of financing of the Group during the forecast period.

. Assessing the basis of preparation of the cash flow projection
and comparing the key assumptions used, including estimated
number of retail stores, estimated online sales growth,
gross profit, headcount, capital expenditure and operating
expenses, with historical trend and data of the Group and
external economic data to assess the reasonableness of the
basis and key assumptions adopted by management during
the forecast period.

. Assessing management’s plan of disposals of non-core
properties and comparing the estimated cash inflow generated
from the disposals to the sale and purchase agreements and
letters of intent concluded both before and after year end.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7. o B b e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

(i) Assessment of going concern assumption in preparing
the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

. Examining the letter of intent from the Company’s Chairman

to arrange a loan facility to the Group.

. Testing the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow
projection and evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared
by management around the key assumptions of the cash
flow projection to ascertain the extent and likelihood of such
changes in assumptions have been appropriately considered.

. Considering whether the disclosures prepared by
management relating to going concern included in the

consolidated financial statements are appropriate.

We found the basis and key assumptions used in the management’s
cash flow projection were supported by available evidence and the
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements based
on procedures performed were consistent with the basis and key

assumptions used.

(ii) Provisions for impairment of inventories

Nature of the Key Audit Matter

Refer to Notes 4.1 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements

At 31 December 2019, the Group held inventories of
HK$162,013,000, which were carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling expenses.
In the determination of these estimates, the directors applied
judgment based upon a detailed analysis of aged inventories,
historical experience of selling similar products, the future sales
plans and possible changes in customer taste and competitor

actions in response to changes in industry conditions.

We focused on this area due to the significance of the balance and

significant management judgment and estimates involved.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7. o B b e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

(ii) Provisions for impairment of inventories (Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s estimation and
judgment applied in calculating the amount of the inventory
provisions included:

. Understanding the key inventory controls operating across
the Group, including the procedures on periodic review of
inventory provisions, and validating their effectiveness on a
sample basis.

. Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of inventory aging
report.

. Performing analysis on inventory aging report as at the year
end and movement data during the year and subsequent to the
year end to identify slow-moving inventories.

. Comparing, on a sample basis, the carrying amount of
inventory items against its selling price during the year and
subsequent to the year end to identify inventories with net
realisable value lower than its carrying amount.

. Assessing the basis of inventory provision calculation and
evaluating the key assumptions used, including budgeted
sales quantities and selling prices in different sales channels,
with reference to historical sales performance of similar
products and discussions on the Group’s future sales plans
with senior management.

. Testing the mathematical accuracy of the inventory provision
calculation and examining management’s sensitivity analysis
over the key assumptions in the future sales plans.

Based upon the above, we considered that the management’s
estimation and judgment applied in respect of the inventory
provisions were supportable by available evidence.

BEOJE UE BN OBR B R AR A W | 4E 4R 2019 63

I3 ¢ 7 Wt = IR (A)

(ii)

A 85 U E 488 6 (%)

Fe A ey -G o i B R AR B o OH
S LG AE R AT B R R T A A
FE 2B AR LA

. fifE B4 R 2 B A B B AT
g < W B > S DUl 7 2
HA % AE -

gy

o DibpRTDr SO B B i R 2 e o

. %“T@iﬁﬁ“"“"ﬁ%&iﬂfﬁﬁq&ﬁ?ﬁzé
1 58 B B E AT 0 A > DARR A W B A R

o DhhaRTr U 8 T Y MR T (e B
TEAF N B AR R 2 A% B B (B A% DLk il T
5 B (EAR R H MR TR (2 A7 B

o PG EBET R R REE . B HEM
DL ity 9 208 1 G 4 SR A0 L S LAY UL il R
B R A B A B B e o REAG B R
S RE A S HENEHE MR

21
A ©

o WU B AR RO T ERE o A B
L 35 R A A T ) R ) R AR R P AR Y
[ R T

TR DL Bl > FRAM R S B SRR DL SRR
LR AT A ST A A Al A o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7. o B b e

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7. o B b e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
¥ 7. o B b e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Yuen Kwok Kin Andrew.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
RYN
e Wi
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 # % — & —JU4F+ —H =+—H I 4F ¥
2019 2018
- Sy | I —E— )\
Note HK$°000 HKS$°000
Bt 5 Tt T
Turnover = 5 2,126,362 4,127,087
Cost of sales BB AR (1,345,224) (2,066,058)
Gross profit T 781,138 2,061,029
Other income HAlie A 6 25,832 42,599
Other losses — net HoAth i 15 — 15 48 7 (3,679) (22,223)
Selling and distribution expenses B8 1) 8 BH 32 (1,512,410) (2,565,009)
General and administrative expenses — % S AT BB 3L (310,416) (302,973)
Operating loss pegog s 8 (1,019,535) (786,577)
Finance costs P 55 R AR 9 (21,346) (5,660)
Share of losses of associates JRE AL B 5
and joint ventures BEEMEZBER 18, 19 (1,291) (868)
Loss before income tax Wk T 45 B Al s 18 (1,042,172) (793,105)
Income tax expense Ji 15 B B 52 10 (54,254) (217,088)
Loss for the year AN G 1R (1,096,426) (1,010,193)
Attributable to: LIF % T EN -
Shareholders il (1,070,127) (994,397)
Non-controlling interests T 42 1) v M A (26,299) (15,796)
(1,096,426) (1,010,193)
Loss per share, basic and diluted (HK cents) B 3 A X488 5 18 (7811l) 11 (64.9) (60.3)

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
»'ZB I:l = 2 ﬁ 1& i i%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #% ~F— L4+ _-H=+—H L 4%

2019 2018
ZF e =T 4
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# T THE T
Loss for the year AN g 1R (1,096,426) (1,010,193)
Other comprehensive loss Al 4 T s 15
Items that may be reclassified subsequently a7 B E
to profit or loss: Ha 9 IHH -
Currency translation differences [itE 58, 75 A (506) (129)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently ] R A E
to profit or loss: Har HIH A -
Currency translation differences [ifE 53, 75 FH (18,236) (105,905)
Change in fair value of an equity investment T AE R A A 4 1H
at fair value through other s 2 IR g 2 T
comprehensive income ) = (70)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A TN 4 TH i 1R AR A (1,115,168) (1,116,297)
Attributable to: LU & TN, -
Shareholders il (1,087,179) (1,096,267)
Non-controlling interests I P ) PE A A (27,989) (20,030)
(1,115,168) (1,116,297)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be DL _F 454 4> 1 Ik 35 75 8 B {33 — F B8 3 -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

o EE R R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 A —Z—JL4F+ - H =+—H

4 #2019 69

2019 2018
“E A TE A
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
R 51 Tt T
Non-current assets IE B E
Land use rights + A RE 14 = 39,803
Property, plant and equipment ERN NS ] 15 167,265 463,650
Investment properties ild ¢S 16 369,645 173,092
Right-of-use assets i HE & e 17 68,622 -
Interests in associates AU 8 A 2 R 4 18 1,481 1,868
Interests in joint ventures REBESEZER 19 1,002 1,949
Long-term rental deposits and prepayments 1 AR 4 e 4 T TR 300 - 59,597
Deferred income tax assets A8 HIE JT 15 B T & 29 = 47,705
608,015 787,664
Current assets )
Inventories Ve 20 162,013 992,314
Trade receivables B 5y E W 3k 21 64,875 160,100
Other receivables, deposits A JEE IS IR AR~ 4 T
and prepayments T AT I 22 142,689 526,163
Pledged bank deposits E KA ERAT A7 3K = 174,248
Cash and cash equivalents ST ST ERE Y] 23 182,059 186,521
551,636 2,039,346
Assets classified as held-for-sale R FAR G 2 EE 24 71,713 142,360
623,349 2,181,706
Current liabilities SR I
Trade payables B 5 BEAT R 25 138,700 530,629
Other payables and accrued charges L Al 8 A B R % RE F T2 226,912 312,859
Lease liabilities HEAM 17 25,621 -
Contract liabilities wHRAaM 7,407 9,717
Current income tax liabilities RV Jor 45 B B4 5,169 7,558
Bank loans AT H K - 192,309
403,809 1,053,072
Liabilities directly associated with assets BB AR ELEZ
classified as held-for-sale B A B 24 8,045 992
411,854 1,054,064
Net current assets T R 211,495 1,127,642
Total assets less current liabilities HUE E WO B AR 819,510 1,915,306




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
fRE EE AR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 i* & — L%+ - H=1+—H

2019 2018
—F-hAE —R— )\
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Bt 5E T# T THE T

Equity attributable to shareholders I SR A1 AR 2
Share capital e As 26 164,914 164,914
Reserves it 145 28 527,797 1,614,911
692,711 1,779,825
Non-controlling interests T i PEHE 4R 103,642 131,631
Total equity HARE DS 796,353 1,911,456

Non-current liabilities IR E) &
Lease liabilities HEAME 17 20,469 -
Deferred income tax liabilities W S T A5 B JH A 29 2,688 3,850
U S 1) - L 1. ) U

Total equity and non-current liabilities HORERR J IR IR ) B AR 819,510 1,915,306

The consolidated financial statements on page 67 to 144 were approved A& A MHREZRFTR 14 H O HEFGH —F -
by the board of directors on 27 March 2020 and were signed on its ZF = A L At LR EFHFEHE -
behalf.

CHANG CHIH-KAI CHANG CHIH-CHIAO
R RE®
Director Director
i B

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction Dl F 456 & E & 1k 25 ME BLAH BE FF 51— F (15 o
with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #% —F— L4+ _-H=1+—H L 4%
Attributable to shareholders

Bt 5 HE Al
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves interests Total
i A 1 BEReT L £ At
Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
i T T T Tk
At 1 January 2018 W oE—)\4E—H—H 164,914 2,709,993 160,754 3,035,661
Loss for the year A A i 4 - (994,397) (15,796)  (1,010,193)
Change in fair value of an equity /N L NS R
investment at fair value through Nt 2 b 2 A F
other comprehensive income B - (70) - (70)
Currency translation differences e 5. 2 %A - (101,800) (4,234) (106,034)
Total comprehensive loss 2 T i 1H AL AR - (1,096,267) (20,030)  (1,116,297)
Disposal of subsidiaries A% B A ) - - (9,093) (9,093)
Share option scheme: JERE R -

Value of grantee services EREINC Ll 28 - 1,185 - 1,185
_Total transactions with shareholders _ HBAZHMM S LI8S (9.093)____._(1908).
At 31 December 2018 RoF—=EFZH=+—H 164,914 1,614,911 131,631 1,911,456
Loss for the year CAN i - (1,070,127) (26,299)  (1,096,426)
Currency translation differences e 52, 7% %A - (17,052) (1,690) (18,742)
Total comprehensive loss E0] Fiskik - (1,087,179) (27,989)  (1,115,168)

Share option scheme: TR BRI -
Value of grantee services RN IRB R (E 28 - 65 - 65
_Total transactions with shareholders _ MUBSZHMM = 65 ... - .55
At 31 December 2019 REFE—=NETZA=+— 164,914 527,797 103,642 796,353

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

DA L 5 HE i 528 ) 2 O BLA R I 5 — O BT



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
e BlenER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 #(%£ ~ % — fUff+ =] =+ —H I &
2019 2018
ZF N TR\
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
Bt 5E T# T THE T
Operating activities I H)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations WEEL IR 2B 4 30 226,291 (153,336)
Income tax paid WENPIRES (8,162) (4,445)
Net cash generated from/(used in) s EL ) 2
operating activities 455 218,129 (157,781)
Investing activities BEIGH)
Interest received A S 1,848 5,173
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment ff B W3 - W E KM (26,397) (115,323)
Proceeds from disposal of land use rights B b feT R M K — 4,450
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant B E R
and equipment A% s K 70,805 25,057
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries B B JE N A Uk 19,815 70,848
Proceeds from disposal of an available-for- T B R
sale financial asset B R R - 3,624
Decrease in pledged bank deposits 2K ERAT A7 kD 174,248 7,155
Decrease in bank deposit with maturity over 772K HAH# =M H ~
three months SRATAE WD = 4,785
Net cash generated from investing activities 4% & % By 7 A= 2 # & 1F 48 240,319 5,769
Financing activities Pl T 15 )
Payments of interest on bank loans AT SR AT B EA B (3,416) (5,660)
Proceeds from bank loans SRAT K Z qﬁ( B 27,964 128,905
Repayment of bank loans B RAT B (219,155) (93,149)
Principal element of lease payments AT 3R 2 A g H y (253,061)
Interest element of lease payments & AT 3 2 A B 0y (17,930) -
Net cash (used in)/generated from RCETRE) (FF ) A
financing activities SiT PRt ] (465,598) 30,096
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents B BB a4 E YD (7,150) (121,916)
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January H—H—H 2 8% B ESEY 188,748 300,114
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes T 4% 485 ) 5 28 695 10,550
Cash and cash equivalents NTHZA=+t—HZHE R
as at 31 December HE%EHY 23 182,293 188,748

The above consolidated cash flow statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daphne International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the manufacturing, distribution and retailing of footwear and
accessories in mainland China.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(i) Going concern basis

The Group recorded a loss of HK$1,096,426,000 (2018:
HK$1,010,193,000) and a net cash generated from
operating activities of HK$218,129,000 (2018: net cash
used in operating activities of HK$157,781,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group’s cash
used in lease payments for the year ended 31 December
2019 of HK$270,991,000 is classified and included
in cash used in financing activities upon the adoption
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Note 17). As at 31 December
2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$182,059,000 (2018: HK$186,521,000).

— M E R
FE R B WP AT BR8] ([ AR 28 51 1) B B

) (R T A SR )) 5 A o [ R B A 3 R
o 8 AR R o S LR S

ANE SRR RS 2 ARA R - H
JB 53 T4 A s Wk 5 28 S BT A PR m) Bl o AR A
Z ik Ak B 137 7 Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands °

W75 A REMI S > BLAR & B 3k LU T fE -

EREFFIBOR
f 5 B R R R TR 2 O i t BOR
HH R SC o BR 5 RE WIS - % O T
R AFIUR 2 A0 -

2.1 HRRuE
G T SR 3 0 i BT A R A o T R
v 1)1 7 s T 5 R M ) ) A0 s 8 R
Wt 5562225 1 B # TR M Y o 45 A A RS i
T HE R AR VL A o

A AT 7 s B O T AR B R
T ZE M TR o E g IR
JEUTE M T A 4 T 22 @ ISR IR A o ) B
T e g R B 1) I R A Y R > AR
BB AL ARG B R B A R R
SIS B REA BR o

(i) FFHERENILYE
BE-Z—NFT+_H=+—HI
AE B A AR ] 8% 15 5 51,096,426,000
oo (=& — /U4FE 1 1,010,193,000%5
JG) K SR B E A B AR R B
218,129,0004% G (% — J\4F - K%
5 B A A B4 % 8H157,781,000%
Jt) e MEEF—NFTH=1T—H
1E AR > A A D A LB A R B 4
270,991,000%% JC » i BF: 4 7 v BA 5
HHERE 165 TS IR0 BIA KEFA
RlE BT 2 BLe (k7)) -
E—EFH=+—H » AEHEM
B4 B B 4 55 18 W) 74 182,059,000 76
(& —)\4E 1 186,521,000 50) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

74

)

Going concern basis (Continued)

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
in early 2020 (the “COVID-19 outbreak™), a series
of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across mainland China,
such as extension of the Chinese New Year holiday
and certain restrictions and controls over travelling of
people. Such precautionary and control measures have
limited the normal operations of the Group in mainland
China, especially the opening of its retail stores and
also severely affected the consumer sentiment. If the
present situation in respect of the COVID-19 outbreak
continued and the restrictions and control measures are
prolonged, the Group’s operation performance and cash
flow may be negatively affected.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity requirements and operating performance of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern.

The management have, during the year and up to the
date of the approval of these consolidated financial
statements, taken the following measures and plans to
ensure the Group will have sufficient working capital in
the next twelve months:

(a) The Group continued its efforts to implement
various restructuring measures with a view to
improving the operating results and strengthening
its working capital position. Under the current
unfavourable economic situation and challenging
retail business environment, the Group continued
to face decrease in sales volume and average
selling price in its directly-managed stores during
the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group has
therefore adopted a strategy to mainly focus on
the development of its e-commerce business and
supplemented by a reduced scale of physical store
network. During 2019, the Group has substantially
scaled down its physical store network and
restructured its back office to minimise its
operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
Going concern basis (Continued)

(@

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

()

In addition, the Group has entered into contractual
arrangements with certain third parties (“operation
partners”) to transfer the operating rights of all its
remaining directly-managed stores in mainland
China to reduce its operational leverage. Under
such arrangements, the Group will supply its
products for sale in the relevant stores on a
consignment basis and the operation partners will
collect an agreed percentage of the turnover of
the relevant stores as concessionary fees. All the
store operating costs, such as store staff salaries
and rental expenses, will be borne by the operation
partners.

Management is closely monitoring the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and
assessing its impact to the Group. Meanwhile, the
Group has taken a number of measures to restore
the operations of its physical retail stores to normal
and to minimise the adverse financial impact to
the Group. These measures, among others, include
negotiation with suppliers to adjust the terms of
the purchase orders already placed, revisiting its
merchandise purchasing plan and further control of
administrative expenses.

In December 2019 and January 2020, the Group
entered into various agreements to dispose of
certain properties with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$23,167,000 at a total consideration of
HK$28,415,000, out of which HK$6,853,000 has
been collected subsequent to the year end date, the
balance of the consideration of HK$21,562,000
is expected to be collected by the Group in April
2020. The Group also intends to further dispose
certain of its non-core properties with a carrying
value of approximately HK$47,688,000 in 2020 in
an effort to enhance its liquidity position.

On 27 March 2020, the Chairman of the Company
has confirmed his intention to arrange a loan
facility to the Group for a term of up to one year
amounting to approximately HK$50,000,000 as
and when needed.

The Group continues to look for additional sources
of financing to enhance its financial position.

2 EEFEBOR (8)

2.1 #RBLELHE (#)
AR A B ()

(@

(b)

©

(d)

©)

()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

76

)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed the
Group’s cash flow projections prepared by the
management. The cash flow projections cover a period
of not less than twelve months from 31 December 2019.
Based on these cash flow projections, the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the coming
twelve months from 31 December 2019. The Group’s
ability to achieve the projected cash flows depends on
management’s ability to achieve the following:

(a) successful implementation of a business plan for
its Core Brands Business to improve operating
results and generate cash inflow;

(b) successful implementation of measures to
minimise the adverse impact of the COVID-19
outbreak on its operations and timely restoration of
the Group’s normal operation upon the uplift of the
precautionary and control measures;

(c) successful disposal of non-core properties and
collection of sales proceeds in the expected
timeframe; and

(d) successful draw down of funds from financial
support to be provided by the Chairman as
mentioned above and raising of additional new
sources of financing, as and when needed.

The directors of the Company, after due consideration
of the basis of management’s plans and measures, are
confident that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when
they fall due at least in the next twelve months from 31
December 2019. Accordingly, the directors considered
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements of the Group on a going concern basis.

Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019

2 FEEFEBOR (8)

2.1 H WAL (4])

(@

Fi BEAS  2E E (B)

AR R 3 S O A B A LR A ) 2 A
A 1 B g vt B TR > % B v B T
WERFHA DR —F—LFE+ A
=t R RA T R A - R
o B TR A B A L R
BER 2 b — 2 —uE+ A
=+ BRFFR R A E A R E
9 o 15 TAT: = A 2 1 B 75 i T T 19
BEWE > R B fE 7 2
PR

(a) B Bk A% O O RS 2 2
Bsut B DR TR B4 M
WERA S

(b) JRIIEAT it DA 2 8 980020197
AR B SR 4 2 R ) O A
OB TR AT IR By 5 A HE i A
& T I IR A SR [ OE 0

(c) A TRy ) 3 7 B2 o 5 R AZ O
W) 3 B W B 4 BT e OE 5 %

(d) JRIHRH B SOtk g E R e A
(Y A B SR B MR AT R
I3 35 4 BH SN BT AU -

TE T8 73 75 8 A B 114 w8 A i e o
R > AR REEAEOALBIGAH
R EEEEURNED R %
— AT A =+ — BEF R K
+ T AE A R E A B EAT o Pk
2 R T A A e R YR A 1) A 4 1
) &7 B R ) JB Y



BEOOE R OB MR oM M A OB oW | 4R E o209 77

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

New and amended standards and interpretations
adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards and interpretations for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

Amendments to Plan Amendment,

HKAS 19 Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint

Ventures
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Leases

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
HKEFRS 16

Amendments to Annual
Improvements Project

Annual Improvements
2015 -2017 Cycle

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

The Group changed its accounting policies as a result
of adopting HKFRS 16 “Lease”. The Group elected to
adopt the simplified transition approach and has not
restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period.
This is disclosed in Note 2.2. Other amendments and
interpretations listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

New and amended standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new and amended standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory for 31
December 2019 reporting periods and have not been
early adopted by the Group. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on foreseeable
future transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and  Definition of Material'
HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business'

Amendments to HKAS 39, Hedge Accounting'
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
HKFRS 17

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting
Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Effective for accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2020

Effective for accounting period beginning on or after
1 January 2021

Effective date is to be determined
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

78

(CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policy

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

As indicated in Note 2.1(ii) above, the Group has adopted
simplified transition approach and has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting period, as permitted
under the specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new
leasing standard are therefore recognised in the opening
consolidated balance sheet on 1 January 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed below.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease
liabilities in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under the principles of HKAS
17 “Leases”. These liabilities were measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The
weighted average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied
to the lease liabilities on 1 January 2019 ranged from 2.7% to
5.6%.

(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has
used the following practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

. applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

. relying on previous assessments on whether leases
are onerous as an alternative to performing an
impairment review;

. accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases;

. excluding initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application; and

. using hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend or
terminate the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.2 Change in accounting policy (Continued)

(@

2 EEFEBOR (8)

2.2 & ah 8RS B (%)

Practical expedients applied (Continued) () EHESEMT%(HE)
The Group has also elected not to reassess whether AL CEREAEN AN T
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial WERHAYWESAHESGAREETHE
application. Instead, for contracts entered into before R o A - B TEEE B H 2 Hi
the transition date the Group relied on its assessment FISLI A 4 > A2 BRI F A5 s
made applying HKAS 17 “Leases” and Interpretation TR B 179% [ A B 1A A5 uk (B p
4 “Determining whether an Arrangement contains a WH SRR B E) B4t
Lease”. TE L PE R A LR AR AR B B FRA o
(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities (i) MEAMKZGE
HK$°000
T-# T
Operating lease commitments disclosed W_F—-NE+_A=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 o 45 B F) A8 7 L B R A 716,747
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental PR R AR & OB H B0
borrowing rate of the date of initial application BTG 15 SR 22 1 B (25,240)
Less: short-term leases and low-value leases recognised 8 : 4% H &% 1% i 52 25 B =2 1 8 300
on a straight-line basis as expense TH A R AR AE (EAH & (234,238)
Lease liabilities recognised as at = FEJUE—H — HERR
1 January 2019 HE AR 457,269
Of which are: Hfr 74
Current lease liabilities mEBHEAE 312,899
Non-current lease liabilities IR B AT A AR 144,370
457,269

(iii) Measurement of right-of-use assets

Land use rights previously presented as a separate
item on balance sheet were grouped as part of right-
of-use assets with effect from 1 January 2019. Other
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount equal
to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2018.

(i) FERAMEEZFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EREHHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
2.2 Change in accounting policy (Continued) 2.2 FEHBOOREH) (M)
(iv) Adjustments recognised in the consolidated balance (ivy E_F—NLE—HHEAEEAM/E
sheet on 1 January 2019 vj P T SRV
The change in accounting policy affected the following ERTEORESE BT _E—LFE—H
items in the consolidated balance sheet on 1 January —H#EEEEABEEFW FHIEH :
2019:
At 31 At 1
December 2018  Effect of the January
As originally adoption of 2019
presented HKFRS 16 Restated
e 2N RWFHE B
TZAZ+—H MEREEL —H—H
HIER 2 H1659% 1 B B S g
Consolidated balance sheet Hea'EEARE HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(extract) (&%) Tt T# T T# T
Non-current assets Ik Ui By B
Land use rights & b fifE I E 39,803 (39,803) -
Long-term rental deposits 12 WIAH 5 4 4
and repayments A B 59,597 (7,059) 52,538
Right-of-use assets o R - 583,347 583,347
Current assets B A
Other receivables, deposits At U R K
and prepayments e TR AT RO 526,163 (90,853) 435,310
Current liabilities it B £
Other payables and accrued A 1 AT B R %
charges MEF 2 H 312,859 (13,864) 298,995
Lease liabilities L A - 312,899 312,899
Non-current liabilities I B A 1E
Lease liabilities L A - 144,370 144,370
The net impact on the Group’s retained profits on 1 F 7 R 40 7 v B TS R 1 R B 2B 1698
January 2019 as a result of adoption of HKFRS 16 is not WALEERLE _F—NF—H—HREH
significant. B 5 BN AN TR o
(v) Lessor accounting v) HHMAZ AR
The Group did not need to make any adjustments to TRAR A s A S S E R BB 169545 > A
the accounting for assets held as lessor under operating LEATEHEESBAATFAENE
leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16. FE 1) €1 5T b AR AT AT R A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 7 0 B5  R T

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial

statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up

to 31 December.

(@

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provided
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
former shareholders of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
are expensed as incurred.

2 EEFEBOR (8)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)

82

)

(i)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred and the
fair value of non-controlling interest over the net
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the
net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
shareholders in their capacity as shareholders of the
subsidiary. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of
the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is
recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the
date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amount
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Associates and joint arrangements

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 7 0 B5  R T

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3 Consolidation (Continued)
(ii) Associates and joint arrangements (Continued)

2 EEFEBOR (8)

23 #HAMEHR (#)
() BEAFRREERHEE)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable that the
investments in the associates and joint arrangements
are impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates
the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate or joint
arrangement and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to “share of losses of associates and
join ventures” in the consolidated income statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in
associates are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Under HKFRS 11, investments in joint arrangements
are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures
depending on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of
its joint arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

84

2.3

24

2.5

Consolidation (Continued)

(ii) Associates and joint arrangements (Continued)
Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the joint ventures. Unrealised loss is
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the joint ventures have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM”). The CODM who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(@

(i)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$, while the
Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB”).

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

. income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

86

(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies (Continued)
Currency translation differences arising from foreign
operations may be reclassified subsequently to profit
or loss while currency translation differences arising
from translation of non-foreign operations will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-
in-progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to their
residual values, where appropriate, over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 20 to 50 years

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery, furniture, fixtures
and equipment and motor vehicles

1 to 3 years
5to 10 years
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Construction-in-progress represents buildings under
construction and pending completion and is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes
the costs of construction of buildings. No depreciation is
charged on construction-in-progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and are ready for intended use.
When the assets concerned are brought to use, the costs are
transferred to property, plant and equipment and depreciated
in accordance with the policy stated above.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment
are the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Land use rights

All land in mainland China is state-owned and no individual
land ownership right exists. The Group acquired the right to
use certain land. The premiums paid for such right are treated
as prepayment for operating lease and recorded as land use
rights, which are amortised over the lease periods using
the straight-line method. The land use rights are stated at
historical cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses, if any.

As disclosed in Note 2.2, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16
from 1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives for
the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the simplified
transition approach in the standard. The reclassifications
from land use rights to right-of-use assets arising from the
new leasing standards are therefore recognised in the opening
balance sheets on 1 January 2019.
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(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investment properties

Investment properties, comprising buildings, are held for
long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that are not occupied by the Group.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
the investment properties are stated at historical costs less
accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment loss,
if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent
expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the asset
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the property will flow to the Group and the
cost of the property can be measured reliably. All other repair
and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to write off the cost over the estimated useful lives to their
estimated residual values. Estimated useful lives of buildings
are from 20 to 50 years.

The residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The
carrying amounts of assets are reviewed regularly. An
investment property’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount
(Note 2.10).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of
the relevant assets and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

2 EEFEBOR (8)

2.10 I £ fl B e Bk A

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet
ready for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
balance sheet date.

2.11 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held-for-

sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held-
for-sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use and the sale is considered highly probable. They are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets,
assets arising from employee benefits and financial assets
that are carried at fair value and contractual rights under
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this
requirement.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a
disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they
are classified as held-for-sale. Interest and other expenses
attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as
held-for-sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held-for-sale and the assets
of a disposal group classified as held-for-sale are presented
separately from the other assets in the consolidated balance
sheet. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held-
for-sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheet.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

90

)

(i)

(iii)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets as those to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flow.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group
classified its debt instruments as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in “other losses —
net” together with foreign exchange gains and losses.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and other receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.
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(CONTINUED)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the
counterparty.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories comprise raw materials, work-in-progress
and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, calculated on the weighted average
basis, comprises materials, direct labour, other direct costs
and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity) and excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.15 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the
amount of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade and other
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See Note
2.12 for further information about the Group’s accounting for
trade and other receivables for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks with original maturities of three months or
less.

2.17 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs,
net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Borrowings and Borrowing costs

2 EEFEBOR (8)

2.19 85 8 M A5 B A

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds
(net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All
other borrowing costs are charged to the consolidated income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income taxes

The income tax for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the places where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation
is subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to
be paid to the tax authorities.
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(CONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only where there
is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
difference will be reversed in the future and there is
sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Current and deferred income taxes (Continued)
(iii) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same tax authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.21 Employee benefits

(@

(i)

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses with reference to a number of factors including
the Group’s operating results, individual and market
performance and directors’ discretion. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged
or where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in various defined contribution
retirement schemes which are established by
governments or separately administered funds. A
defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to separately
administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund
does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods. The Group’s contributions are recognised
as employee benefits expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.
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(CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Share-based compensation

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates two equity-settled share-based
compensation plans under which the Group receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, including any market performance
conditions and excluding the impacts of any non-
market service and performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
retaining an employee of the Group over a specified
period) as well as any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to save). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total amount expensed is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each
balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based
on non-marketing vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.

If an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new award are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Share-based compensation (Continued)

(iv)

)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

If an equity award is cancelled by forfeiture, when the
vesting conditions (other than market conditions) have
not been met, any expense not yet recognised for that
award, as at the date of forfeiture, is treated as if it had
never been recognised. At the same time, any expense
previously recognised on such cancelled equity awards
is reversed from the accounts effective as at the date of
forfeiture.

The dilutive effect, if any, of outstanding options is
reflected as additional share dilution in the computation
of earnings per share.

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

For cash-settled share-based payment transactions, the
Group measures the services acquired and the liability
incurred at the fair value of the liability. Until the
liability is settled, the Group remeasures the fair value
of the liability at the end of each reporting period and
at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss for the period.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the Group recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the balance sheet date are
discounted to their present value.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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(CONTINUED)

2.22 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of economic resources will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligations
using a pre-tax that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation.
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition

(i) Sale of goods — wholesale
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
wholesaler, the wholesaler has full discretion over the
channel and price to sell the products, and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s
acceptance of the products.

The goods are often sold with sales discounts. Revenue
from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of the estimated volume
discounts. No element of financing is deemed present.

(ii) Sale of goods - retail
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
Group sells a product to the customer. Payment of the
transaction price is due immediately when the customer
purchases the goods.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases 224 1

2 EEFEBOR (8)

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee.
The new policy is described below:

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of the
liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
fund necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-
of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.
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2.24 Leases (Continued)

2 FEEFEBOR (8)

224 M8 (%)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group used
recent third-party financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

. any initial direct costs; and
. restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with leases of low-value assets are
recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. The Group did not
need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company is
recognised as a liability in the Company’s and the Group’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the board of directors and the shareholders of the
Company, where appropriate.

2.26 Government subsidies
Government incentives are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the incentives will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.

2.27 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

2.28 Franchise and royalty income
Franchise and royalty income is recognised on an accruals
basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effect on
the Group’s financial performance. The use of financial
derivatives to manage certain risk exposures should be
approved by the board of directors.

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in mainland China with
transactions primarily settled in RMB, HKS$ and United
States dollars (“US$”). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the Group’s entities
to which they relate. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk from various currencies, primarily with
respect to HK$ and USS$.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular review of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and the Group may use forward
foreign exchange contracts when major fluctuation in
the relevant foreign currency is anticipated.

As at 31 December 2019, if the RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the HK$ or the US$ with
all other variables held constant, the loss for the year
would have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$646,000 (2018: HK$7,502,000) as a result of the
translation of HK$ and US$ denominated cash and bank
balances and payables.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
mainly arising from bank deposits bearing interest at
floating rates and the interest income of which was not
material during the year.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of trade receivables, other
receivables, rental deposits and bank deposits stated in
the consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

The majority of the Group’s trade and other receivables
arose from credit sales to trading customers. The Group
has policies in place to evaluate and monitor the credit
terms and payment history of its customers to ensure
recoverability of trade debts. The Group also reviews
the balance of trade receivables at each balance sheet
date to ensure that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables is made.

Rental deposits are mainly placed with various
landlords in mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong
and are due to refund upon the expiry of the tenancy
agreements and handover of the leased premises. In
accordance with expected credit loss, the Group has
provided a loss allowance. During the year, the defaults
by the landlords were not material.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iii) Credit risk (Continued)

3 B E ke A B (4)

3.1 WAE SR E ()
Gii) 15 &8 B (4)

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, substantially all
the Group’s bank deposits, including pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents, were placed
with registered financial institutions located in
mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong which were
of acceptable credit quality based on management’s
assessment. The Group has a policy to limit the credit
exposure to any financial institution and management
does not expect any significant loss arising from non-
performance of these counterparties.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on the ageing and shared credit
risk characteristics. The expected loss rates are based on
the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months
before 31 December 2019 and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables. On that basis, the movements in loss
allowance for trade receivables are as follows:
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Increase in loss allowance recognised ERTEAR & P AERE Y
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At 31 December mt—_HA=+—H 15,101 9,661
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk

3 B E ke A B (4

3.1 W E ks I ® (A1)
(iv) ¥ B B 4 B

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s
liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to
meet operational needs.

The Group recorded a loss of HK$1,096,426,000 (2018:
HK$1,010,193,000) and a net cash generated from
operating activities of HK$218,129,000 (2018: net cash
used in operating activities of HK$157,781,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2019. The Group’s cash
used in lease payments for the year ended 31 December
2019 of HK$270,991,000 is classified and included
in cash used in financing activities upon the adoption
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Note 17). As at 31 December
2019, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
HK$182,059,000 (2018: HK$186,521,000).

Following the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a
series of precautionary and control measures have been
and continued to be implemented across mainland
China, such as extension of the Chinese New Year
holiday and certain restrictions and controls over
travelling of people. Such precautionary and control
measures have limited the normal operations of the
Group in mainland China, especially the opening of its
retail stores and also severely affected the consumer
sentiment. If the present situation in respect of the
COVID-19 outbreak continued and the restrictions and
control measures are prolonged, the Group’s operation
performance and cash flow may be negatively affected.

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration to the future
liquidity requirements and operating performance of the
Group and its available sources of financing in assessing
whether the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to continue as a going concern. The plans and
measures undertaken to mitigate the liquidity pressure
and to improve the financial position of the Group are
summarised in Note 2.1(i).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

St 255 ) B 4 B (4)

31

B 5 AL R ()
(iv) B & 4k (4)
TR R A 5 40 E 2
BRI 5 5 A 5 5 67 2 A
BIEINALR - % R 2 ST 6
FMBB SR E -

Between 1

Within 1 year and 5 years Total
—AiEN — B4R Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T Tt TG

At 31 December 2019 W —N4E+_H=+—H
Trade payables B 7 e AR K 138,700 = 138,700
Other payables A 1R AT M K 118,751 = 118,751
Lease liabilities HEARE 27,138 21,687 48,825
284,589 21,687 306,276

At 31 December 2018 R _F— NE+_H=1—H
Trade payables B 5y AT K 530,629 - 530,629
Other payables L Ath JE AT R 298,020 - 298,020
Bank loans SRATE K 195,290 - 195,290
1,023,939 - 1,023,939

3.2 Fair value estimation of financial instruments 3.2 &R T HZ A FEAM M

Financial instruments carried at fair value are measured
according to the levels of the fair value hierarchy defined as
follows:

(i) Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities;

(ii) Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices); and

(iii) Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Fair value estimation of financial instruments

(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
Level 2.

Details of the fair value of the investment properties are
disclosed in Note 16.

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
as well as maximising returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, obtain new bank
loans or issue new shares.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a net cash (2018: net
cash) position (the aggregate balances of all bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents exceeded the balance of
bank loans, including assets classified as held-for-sales) by
approximately HK$182,293,000 (2018: HK$170,687,000).
In 2018, the Group also monitored capital using debt-to-
equity ratio, calculated on the basis of total bank loans
divided by total equity, which was 10.1%.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based

on historical experience and other factors, including expectations

of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the

future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,

seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

4.2

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current market
conditions and historical experience of manufacturing
and selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in economic conditions
in places where the Group operates and changes in customer
taste and competitor actions in response to changes in
industry conditions. Management reassesses these estimates
at each balance sheet date.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are transactions and calculations during
the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax liabilities on temporary differences
relating to undistributed profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
in mainland China are recognised to the extent that profits
are expected to be distributed as the Company controls and
pre-determines the dividend policy of these subsidiaries
and management expects it is probable that profits will be
partly retained and not distributed from these subsidiaries
to their foreign holding companies in the foreseeable future.
Management reassesses its expectation at each balance sheet
date.
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AND JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.3 Consolidation of some stores operating under
franchise arrangement and some limited liability
companies in mainland China
Some stores in mainland China were operated under franchise
and other relevant contractual agreements with franchisees.
Management considered the nature of its relationship with
these franchisees and also how they interacted with the
Group, e.g. financing reliance and business relationships,
etc. and determined that the Group had the ability to direct
these franchisees to act on the Group’s behalf. The Group
considered the decision-making rights of these franchisees
and its indirect exposure, or rights, to variable returns
through these franchisees together with its own and hence
determined it had control over the operation of these stores.
The applicable tax of these stores was calculated based on the
tax rates applicable to the respective entities.

The Group also appointed a number of limited liability
companies to provide certain day-to-day operational and
administrative services to its stores in mainland China.
Pursuant to the terms in the service agreements and the
nature of relationship with these companies, management
considered the Group has the power to direct the relevant
activities of these companies and it has the ability to use its
power over these companies to affect its exposure to returns.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing,
distribution and retailing of footwear and accessories.

The CODM has been identified as the executive directors. The
CODM assesses the performance of the business from a business
unit perspective, i.e. Core Brands Business, Other Brands Business
and Manufacturing Business and allocate resources accordingly.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on a measure of segment results before finance costs,
amortisation and impairment of intangible assets and unallocated
corporate income and expenses. Certain corporate overhead
expenses, including management fee, rental and utilities were
reallocated among individual segments based on estimated
consumption.

Revenue from external customers is arrived at after elimination
of inter-segment revenue. Inter-segment revenue is charged in
accordance with terms as determined and agreed mutually by
relevant parties. Revenue from external customers of Core Brands
Business and Other Brands Business is mainly derived from
mainland China and Taiwan. None of the customers accounted for
10% or more of the total turnover of the Group for each of the two
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4 HEGEEF A B ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 4 #8 % #} (%)
The Group’s non-current assets, excluding deferred income tax ASE [ 2 IR ) R (R A P A5 B I E B AN)
assets, are mainly located in mainland China. FE A A R R e
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by DLTR By iy SRR R B i B 2 A R Bk v
reportable segment as reviewed by the CODM: oy 2 W g B SEER AT
Year ended 31 December 2019
BREZZ-AETZAZHHIEEE
Core Other Manu-  Inter-segment
Brands Brands facturing elimination/
Business Business Business Corporate Group
B> HAb g
b 5 GES PREEH  WE/ b
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TH# 7t TH#x Ti#n TH#x T#x
Revenue from external customers HOEF G 1,737,608 388,754 - - 2,126,362
Inter-segment revenue il 145,260 = 88,442 (233,702) =
Total segment revenue Fiyilien 1,382,868 388,754 88,442 (233,702) 2,126,362
Segment results PHHESR (951,591) (48,713) (35,527) 21,990 (1,013,841)
Corporate income E | UN 11,389
Corporate expenses (Edha (17,083)
Operating loss BEER (1,019,535)
Finance costs WS A (21,346)
Share of losses of associates and JE A 8 7]
joint ventures BECEZER (1,291)
Loss before income tax I I 15 i 4R (1,042,172)
Other information for disclosure: HAb B ez g Ht
Depreciation of investment properties 1% & ) #H7 # 5,406 - - 2,366 1,172
Depreciation of property, plant ER VL
and equipment K 61,531 5,037 9,901 3,841 80,310
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (P RE 4 5 225,511 25,244 217 592 251,564
Capital expenditure EARM 26,104 224 69 - 26,397




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 Z &%k (4)

Year ended 31 December 2018

BE-Z-NE+A=+—HIERE

Core Other Manu-  Inter-segment
Brands Brands facturing elimination/
Business Business Business Corporate Group
AN HAl Jr i
i M T it M T REEE H/h¥ A
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$000
T T T T T
Revenue from external customers BONEF it 3,544,599 582,488 - - 4,127,087
Inter-segment revenue e ilie 254,167 - 215,757 (469,924) -
Total segment revenue Bl 3,798,766 582,488 215,757 (469,924) 4,127,087
Segment results YEES (788,192) (26,740) 1,398 15,684 (797,850)
Amortisation of intangible assets LA gE 1 (303)
Impairment of intangible assets HigiAv (20,371)
Corporate income HERA 49,675
Corporate expenses ¥R (17,728)
Operating loss BEEH (786,577)
Finance costs 1 5 A (5,660)
Share of losses of associates and JE A8 2 7] I
joint ventures AEtEZER (868)
Loss before income tax I o 754 B e 9 (793,103)
Other information for disclosure: Kbtk BE R
Amortisation of intangible assets gAY A - 303 - - 303
Amortisation of land use rights & H £ 8 £ 738 - 135 769 1,642
Depreciation of investment properties 1% & #) % 4 # 3,285 - - 1,959 5,244
Depreciation of property, plant and ERY YT
equipment g 115,758 7,164 8,345 4,478 135,745
Impairment of intangible assets TV W 15,079 5,292 - - 20,371
Impairment of property, plant ERY YT
and equipment Wil 10,640 - - - 10,640
Capital expenditure BAX 97,245 1,614 16,464 - 115,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B B 5 e o M

S  SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segment as reviewed by the CODM:

5 SrabE R (8D

PUN 2t R g

PSR A P 2 A AR ] 4 ] R

oo 2 EE K AE T

As at 31 December 2019
REZZ-WEFZA=Z1+—H

Core Brands

Other Brands Manufacturing

Business Business Business Group

Bl A MR TS LA SRR BB %W

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TH#T T# T#T T

Segment assets NG E 609,326 103,836 66,463 779,625

Investment properties REWE 369,645

Interests in associates i e /N i 1,481

Interests in joint ventures WA ESEZER 1,002

Assets classified as held-for-sale NELATEREZ EE 71,713

Corporate assets PEERE 7,898

Total assets BEE 1,231,364

Segment liabilities Uik 5L 358,374 48,451 5,662 412,487

Deferred income tax liabilities I 4 T 15 B A A 2,688
Liabilities directly associated with BB ARFELEZER

assets classified as held-for-sale HEMBN AR 8,045

Corporate liabilities (ES=L 11,791

Total liabilities BER 435,011

As at 31 December 2018
REF—-NE+ZA=1—H
Core Brands Other Brands ~ Manufacturing

Business Business Business Group

ol ah RS Al R TS BT £t

HK$°000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000

THT TH#T T TH#T

Segment assets NG 2,306,533 159,133 118,085 2,583,751

Investment properties REWE 173,092

Interests in associates N N A 2 B 1,868

Interests in joint ventures M EEAE 1,949

Deferred income tax assets IR A 7 15 B IR B 47,705

Assets classified as held-for-sale NRERELEZERE 142,360

Corporate assets EEE 18,645

Total assets BB 2,969,370

Segment liabilities ik 5L 718,223 117,392 45,771 881,386

Deferred income tax liabilities RAL AT BT A 8 3,850

Liabilities directly associated with AR ARELELZ

assets classified as held-for-sale PR A Y B 992

Corporate liabilities (e S=L 171,686

Total liabilities R 1,057,914




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

6 OTHER INCOME 6 AW A

2019 2018

—F TE

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt FH T

Franchise and royalty income LR EL 2PN 3,641 243
Government subsidies BT A A 3,036 19,068
Gross rental income FH& U A ER 12,786 11,794
Interest income R A 1,848 5,173
Others HoAb 4,521 6,321
25,832 42,599

7 OTHER LOSSES - NET 7 HAbEH - FH

2019 2018

—F s TE—

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt FH T

Gain on disposal of land use rights HE B b Al R R 5 - 2,670
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B BB 2 Wi A 4,400 34,290
Impairment of intangible assets TV 7 WM - (20,371)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment W2k~ BRE KRk M W E - (10,640)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y 2% - W E M K18 (11,594) (17,488)
Net exchange gain/(loss) [ 580k 25, (k5 1) — 15 %8 3,515 (10,684)
(3,679) (22,223)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

8 OPERATING LOSS 8

Operating loss is stated after charging the following:

#5818
AT E AR T 5145 28

W4 2019 113

2019 2018

ZF A SN

HK$°000 HK$°000

T T T

Amortisation of land use rights b A R B - 1,642

Amortisation of license rights R A8 A = 303

Auditors’ remuneration 127 il P 4 3,658 5,021
Cost of inventories sold, including reversal of EIFERA > T L

provision for slow-moving inventories of T4 7123,024,0000 76 (— %

HK$23,024,000 (2018: HK$314,724,000) — /U 1 314,724,000 76) 1,299,376 1,972,268
Depreciation of investment properties e -CYE LK 7,772 5,244
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment VERN &R 80,310 135,745
Depreciation of right-of-use assets o7 R R TR 251,564 -
Employee benefits expense (Note 13) 1l B A& R B 3 (B 5E13) 582,911 752,252
Expenses relating to short-term leases and A G S T AR BN AT A

variable lease payments 5 BB S 350,763 -
Net impairment loss on financial assets S Il 2 R (s 1RV 5,767 4,982
Loss on termination of leases A E R 80,173 -
Operating lease rentals (including concessionaire b B 18 5 1% 58 42 FH & FH 4

fees) in respect of land and buildings (G457 5 R P 8 6 ) - 1,227,314

9 FINANCE COSTS 9 M MWA
2019 2018
“E A e SN2
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# T T#5 T
Interest on bank loans SR AT R B 3,416 5,660
Interest on lease liabilities GER=S=R T ¥iIsY 17,930 -
21,346 5,660




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 Fir 15 B b ¢
2019 2018
- S 2 e SN
HK$’000 HK$°000
T Tt
Current income tax BV 309 o 15 B0 Bl TH 5,743 7,932
Under/(over) provision MEEERE AL
in prior years (ER B 201 (222)
Deferred income tax (Note 29) I S T A5 BB I (B 5E29) 48,310 209,378
54,254 217,088
The income tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs A A TR B BT A5 B T s 4R 2 T A5 B B AR A IR
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the applicable S g R T - i
domestic tax rates of the Group’s entities as follows: HZ 2T -
2019 2018
“E A e SN2
HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt T #5 7T
Loss before income tax W T 45 B Al s 48 (1,042,172) (793,105)
Add: share of losses of associates and s AL B A T B
joint ventures G EREE 1,291 868
(1,040,881) (792,237)
Income tax credit calculated at applicable DL b8 R B RS
domestic tax rates Fr 15 BLHK A 257,394 193,868
Income not subject to tax DR BBLIA 8,809 15,895
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AN AT 0B B X (11,874) (11,600)
Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was R T R A B I
recognised BiIH 18 (264,928) (210,884)
Derecognition of previously recognised deferred AL FERRE O R 2
income tax assets % S0 T A5 B I (42,022) (206,105)
Other temporary differences not recognised R 2 A BT IR 2 5L 2,311 1,786
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses A8 A A AR 2 B T s 1R 562 900
(Under)/over provision WMAAERE (AL
in prior years T A AR (201) 222
Withholding taxes on royalties and profits 3o B K B 1 R 4 T RE
appropriated by subsidiaries in mainland China (COEEE =& i T IR R 1) (4,305) (1,170)
Income tax expense JiT £5 8 B 52 (54,254) (217,088)
The weighted average domestic tax rate is 25% (2018: 24%). TIVRESF- Y730 75 BL 2R £525% (—F— )\4F 1 24%) o
The applicable rate of Hong Kong profits tax is 16.5% (2018: W R 15 B8 H B R 5516.5% (—F — )\4F -
16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in 16.5%) o A AEFHNERE —F—NEKZF
the consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have — AR+ = — H R W AR A BE A S 0 A
any assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during the years ended T A AT o R BB 2 R AR A BT R SR NI
31 December 2019 and 2018. 0 7 VB M A B AR 44 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

10

11

12

13

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Provision for China corporate income tax is calculated based on
the statutory tax rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the assessable income
of each of the Group’s entities. Income tax on overseas (other than
Hong Kong and mainland China) profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profits for the year at the applicable rates of
income tax prevailing in the places where the Group operates.

Pursuant to the China corporate income tax laws, 10% withholding
tax is levied on all foreign investors, except that only 5% is levied
for foreign investors which are incorporated in Hong Kong, in
respect of dividend distributions arising from a foreign investment
enterprise’s profit earned after 31 December 2007. Withholding
tax at a reduced rate of 7% (2018: 7%) by treaty is applied to the
Group’s entities incorporated in Hong Kong for royalties received
or receivable, net with value-added tax.

LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable
to shareholders of HK$1,070,127,000 (2018: HK$994,397,000)
by the weighted average number of 1,649,142,384 (2018:
1,649,142,384) shares in issue during the year.

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, basic
and diluted loss per share are the same as there was no dilutive
potential share.

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Employee benefits expense, including directors’ emoluments,

10

11

12

13

Fiv 5 6 B 32 (%)

R B 1 2E T 15 B T AR 4R [ A5 R 0 R R
BRI AFGTE ERBLA25% (—F— )\4E : 25%) 51
M o g AN (B s B rp B R e DA AN b ) 2 1 22
ST BT S A AF B 2 A 5T I SR B 2 R 4 A 42 1)
K T A b 2 BLAT B T A BB R G o

MR B AR SE BT A Bk > B A i AN 3 ZH
SPEMRFER —EFEFLE T A= BRI
W M 2 ISR - BAN10% < FEANBL > e
s R MRS 2 g A1 A I AR 5 9% 2 T AT
B o A< G2 [ A v G ROL 2 e 0
IR 8 B0 2 2 WA R s 8 2 4 R 20 T
7% (—F— )\4E 0 7%) BURBAN B -

5 1% i 18

B LA e 18 T AR 4 B SR RE A B54811,070,127,000
#IT (T F — VA £ 994,397,000% 7T) B DLAE A
EL AT I 0 2 I o34 01 ,649,142,384 /8% (&
— J\4E ¢ 1,649,142,384/1%) 515 o

WS IR F— A A = —
06156 FIE 5 45 K] 9098 £ 9000 1 1 1 0
B 2 2 4 LA

Jit B,

HEGAERREE _F—-NFE T H=1—
HIEEEIRERE (22— 4 - ) -

& m

1 & i Al B ¢
I R B S (B35 o e ) 4

represents:
2019 2018
“E A TE A
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt T T
Salaries, allowances and bonuses R T X AN 403,844 677,133
Redundancy costs (Note (i)) WA AR (B EEG)) 139,325 15,377
Defined contribution pension costs (Note (ii)) TE AL OB AR & A (MY 5 Gi)) 39,677 58,557
Share-based payment expense DA AT 75 R B 2 A5 K B 52 65 1,185
582,911 752,252
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13 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

Redundancy costs

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recognised one-off restructuring costs of approximately
HK$139,325,000 in relation to staff redundancy costs
arising from downscaling of its physical store network and
restructuring of its back office. As at 31 December 2019, the
outstanding balance of the restructuring provision amounted
to HK$65,285,000.

Defined contribution pension costs

During the year, unvested benefits were utilised by the Group
to reduce the level of contributions amounting to HK$6,000
(2018: HK$159,000). As at 31 December 2019, there is no
(2018: Nil) unvested benefits available to be utilised in future
years.

(iii) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals for the year include one
(2018: two) director(s) whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 34. The emoluments of the remaining
four (2018: three) individuals are as follows:

13 BB mA G X (4)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

ERELRA

B —NE+ A=+ —HIR4EE
A% A ]y S BB T A A A% AR A TR RN 78
WA EEH > MR EROR LA —
Y AR AS £9139,325,0009 76 i . F
—JUEF H =+ —H - EAEE M R
Fi 2 BR%E 5565,285,000% 7T ©

TE B A KR IR 4 AR

AEIA > AR R R B RS Y R 56,0005 TG
(= —\4E 1 159,000% 70) W 13K« it
SER-JEF A S B IR AE
JE AT R S B O R 3 (& — \4E © ) -

EIEZS T Y Nan

FEN - AAREHFANLETE & (CF N
A WAL) HE S L A O B RE34 -
HEpmA (—F— 4 =4) NEZE
LU

2019 2018
“E A e SN2
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T
Salaries, allowances and bonuses Brdr o~ RN AEAD 14,686 8,389
Redundancy costs EHECE T A 13,862 -
Retirement benefits cost AR AR B AR 333 227
Share-based payment expense DA RS Ay o i 2 A5 3K B 32 7 128
28,888 8,744
Number of individuals

N
2019 2018
Emolument bands T 4 i - b | ZER—)\FE
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 JC %.4,000,000% 7T 1 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 4% ¢ £5,000,000% 7T 1 |
HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,000,001 JC %29,000,000%% 7T 1 -
HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 11,000,001 4% 7€ £12,000,000% JC 1 -
4 3

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group. No directors or the five
highest paid individuals waived or has agreed to waive any
emolument during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

14 LAND USE RIGHTS 14 A M £ HE
2019 2018
—F A ZE— )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THTT
Cost A
At 1 January, as originally presented W — A — H % JF R 2 4 67,534 75,914
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.2 (iv)) R EORE B (M 5E2.23v)) (67,534) -
At 1 January, as restated H—H— H & 55 - 75,914
Exchange adjustment T 5, 38 - (3,652)
Disposal i = (2,317)
Transfer to assets classified as held-for-sale WIS NI EREZEE - (2,411)
At 31 December wt—-_H=+—H = 67,534
Accumulated amortisation SR 3
At 1 January, as originally presented W — A — H %R 25 27,731 28,145
Change in accounting policy (Note 2.2 (iv)) &R EOR 28 (K 5E2.23v)) (27,731) -
At 1 January, as restated w—H—H&KES = 28,145
Exchange adjustment [T 5, 3% e - (1,097)
Amortisation 8 £ - 1,642
Disposal & - (537)
Transfer to assets classified as held-for-sale SN IELE Y EE - (422)
At 31 December wt+=—H=+—H = 27,731
Net book value U T R (H
At 31 December wt—H=+—H - 39,803
At 1 January w—H—H 39,803 47,769




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W3k ~ W Kok i
Furniture,
Leasehold ~ Construction- Plantand fixtures and Motor
Buildings improvements  in-progress machinery equipment vehicles Total
il W
Wy HENEEE ERLIE  RERES KRR it &t

HKSO00  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000
Tk T Tk Tikx Tk Tk Tk

Cost il

At January 2018 REF—NE-H—H 750207 608,279 120 28436 34011 0,61 1,745,764
Exchange adjustment [ 5% (31,218) (23,383) 1 (1,778) (14,737) (1070) (72,187)
Additions KE 16,379 58,382 - 48 6471 1,026 82,306
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE (139,264) - (119) - - - (139,383)
Transfer to assets classified as BRI B

held-for-sale hEzBE (161,990) - - - - - (161990)
Disposals i (14,173) (196,749) - (70) (24268) (4,266) (239,526)
At31 December 2018 RoZ— A=A 421,961 446,529 - 26,636 301,477 18,381 1,214,984
Exchange adjustment [ 5% (7,638) (1,098) = (684) (4,746) (224) (14,390)
Additions KE = 8917 = 11 1420 305 10,713
Transfer to investment properties M E % (201,049) - - - - - (201,049)
Transfer to assets classified BREMEBE

as held-for-sale e ERE (16,964) = = = (9,383) 430) (26,777)
Disposals il (118) (392,426) = (459) (65,596) (9,047) (467,646)
At31 December 2019 REZ-NEFZAZA-0 196,192 61,922 = 25,564 03,172 8,985 515,835
Accumulated depreciation and SR TERNE

impairment

At January 2018 RZF— V= —H 130,861 459,067 - 18816 257,149 19981 886,474
Exchange adjustment 5t (6445) (18,724) - (1528) (12.358) (947) (40,002)
Depreciation & 17,191 83,845 - 4208 28375 2,126 135,745
Transfer to investment properties 4% ¢ Bin% (10,098) - - - - - (10,098)
Transfer to assets classified as BRENEREE

held-for-sale e EE (34,444) - - - - - (34,444)
Provision for impaitment (4 - 10,640 - - - - 10,640
Disposals il (3.494) (168.222) - (29) (21.283) (3953) (196.981)
At31 December 2018 REZ-NEFZA=1—H 93571 366,606 - 21467 252,483 17,007 751334
Exchange adjustment [ 5% (1,398) (1,032) = (652) (4,346) (204) (7,632)
Depreciation g 13,383 4,532 = 3,610 18,559 26 80,310
Transfer to investment properties 48 24 B4 % (48,427) - - - - - (48,427)
Transfer to assets classified as BRENEREE

held-for-sale hEZER (3,865) = = = (3,176) (387) (7428)
Disposals i ] (350,364) o (273) (60476) (8,467) (419,587)
At31 December 2019 REF-REFZA=T—H 53,257 59,742 = 24,152 203,044 8,375 348,570
Net book value W

At31 December 2019 S [ o S St 142,935 2,180 o 1412 20,128 610 167,265
At 31 December 2018 e SepIC:E g et 328390 79923 - 5,169 48994 1,174 463,650
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16 ®“&EWE
2019 2018
“E A TR\
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T AREP
Cost A E
At 1 January w—H—H 238,303 123,729
Exchange adjustment [ifE 58, 51 & (5,358) (11,120)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment B AW WRE Kk 201,049 139,383
Transfer from right-of-use assets B G T RE A 29,101 -
Transfer from/(to) assets classified as a2 N E R
held-for-sale e & 2 & 54,127 (13,689)
Disposal i 1,611) -
At 31 December rt-A=+—H 515,611 238,303
Accumulated depreciation and impairment BRI SO
At 1 January w—H—H 65,211 56,248
Exchange adjustment [itE ¢, 37 B (1,616) (3,279)
Transfer from property, plant and equipment A E - RSB KA 48,427 10,098
Transfer from right-of-use assets A R A 14,310 -
Transfer from/(to) assets classified as R E (R R
held-for-sale e &2 EE 13,473 (3,100)
Depreciation res 7,772 5,244
Disposal iR 1,611) -
At 31 December wrZH=1+—0 145,966 65,211
Net book value BIEYTIRE(EN
At 31 December wt-A=+—H 369,645 173,092
At 1 January R—H—H 173,092 67,481

BB AL BB - 3 A

BHEMES -

Investment properties are situated in mainland China and rented
out under operating leases. Rental income arising from the
investment properties amounting to HK$12,786,000 (2018:
HK$11,794,000) is included in the “other income” in the
consolidated income statement. The operating expenses arising
from the investment properties are not material.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair values of the investment
properties are approximately HK$538,383,000 (2018:
HK$231,498,000). The fair values of the investment properties
were estimated by management mainly using market approach.
The fair value of investment properties is a level 2 fair value
measurement.

As at 31 December 2019, no investment property was pledged
as security. As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of
investment properties pledged as security for certain bank loans
was HK$121,264,000.

& W E A A A A £512,786,0008 IC (—
F— V4 11,794,000 70) > 36 5F A & A ik 4
RIHAUA - mEY ¥R E 288 EH
WAREK -

A B NEF A= —H - BHEWED
N - 18 8 #9 54538,383,000%E 70 (& — JUAE ¢
231,498,00045 7)o BE W) FE 0 T-E (H i B 2
& FER AT SR AW ENATEE
B A TEERE -

B E-NET A=+t —H A
EIEM A - A = F — N+ A =+—H
T A7 T SRAT B AR A A 1) A3 W S R T (R A
121,264,00045 7G ©
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17 LEASES 17 B\
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a AR B FE SR LR A A< 4R BV 2y AR AH N PR B A o
lessee.
(i) Amount recognised in the consolidated balance () NETEEABERERN &
sheet
At 31 December At 1 January
2019 2019
/A S 2
T=H R E L
=+—H —H—H
HK$000 HK$°000
T# T THE T
Right-of-use assets: 1% ] HE B
Land use rights & b (R 17,843 39,803
Buildings EE 50,779 543,544
68,622 583,347
Lease liabilities: HE A -
Current bl 25,621 312,899
Non-current I B 20,469 144,370
46,090 457,269
During the year, additions to the right-of-use assets were AEIA > P RE & E B 0 £578,740,0005 T ©
HK$78,740,000.
(ii) Amount recognised in the consolidated income (i) WREF AW R MRS
statement
2019 2018
—E s T A
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T TT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets o7 FH M o AT B 251,564 -
Interest on lease liabilities HE A AR 17,930 -
Expense relating to short-term leases and A TG S5 AR RN AT A A
variable lease payments 3B 2 350,763 -
Loss on termination of leases I E R 80,173 -
(iii) The total cash outflow for leases during the year was i) F A > HHEBEMHESREE SF 5
HK$270,991,000. 270,991,000%5 7T °
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17 LEASES (CONTINUED)

(iv)

()

(vi)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices, warehouses and retail
stores. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods
of 6 months to 8 years, but may have termination options as
described in (vi) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain
a wide range of different terms and conditions.

Variable lease payments

Some property leases contain variable payment terms that are
linked to sales generated from a store. For individual stores,
lease payments are on the basis of variable payment terms
with a wide range of sales percentages. Variable payment
terms are used for a variety of reasons, including minimising
the fixed costs base for newly established stores. Variable
lease payments that depend on sales are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occur.

Termination options

Termination options are included in a number of property
leases across the Group. These terms are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts.
The majority of termination options held is exercisable by
negotiation with the respective lessor.

(iv)

()

(vi)

17 M (5)

7% 5 0 4 LR 9 B B 3L o g BE

ACSE A 2 R A E - AR
B o AR A IR 2 KR [ E - N A R
JNAEANGE > AT AR AL SC(vi) BT At Yy A%
LB R ARHE -

FEL B 30 B 8 7E A JH AR B 0 R B b AT
R AL AN [A] B  ERA RA

LE Liv-IEe

HS g i AL 6 5 B i A Y
T S ARG K o BT A5 > R A K
TR FE A AT A A B AT SR e 2 AN [ Y
S B B 0 B R o (ol T A A R K
A9 I PR AT 25 > 358 BT O il AR R E A
RSB /ML o AR B BAE S  T AE A
ST R A 2 S A R B R R 2R Y
W R AR o

A% 1k B % 4

AR B A R R S M Rl AL A
LB BEFRAE > DUAE A 42 1 K88 B 1 B
i T 5 TH] e KPR EE M e v A 0 B TS A
A G B R A Y KRR 0 A L AL B 2R SR o vl
8 B RN B P AT 08 o
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18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 7 UGk 2 2 w] Z HE 4
2019 2018
—EFhE ZE AR
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt FH T
At 1 January A—H—H 1,868 1,803
Exchange adjustment [ifE ba, 3 (301) 209
Share of losses JE A G 48 (86) (144)
At 31 December wt—HA=+—H 1,481 1,868
Details of the associates as at 31 December 2019 are as follows: REFE—NFET+H=Z1—H  BEAFZHF
HWR
Place of
incorporation Particulars of Interest held

Name and operation paid-up capital indirectly Principal activities
k4 bR SL BB AR AR ke i 4 BHEER
Hanjiang Dayong Shoe China RMB5,457,000 30% Manufacture of shoe

Material Co., Ltd., F [ 5,457,00000 A\ B ¥ materials

Putian City B BB R
HY HHTT R VTR Ok 2

AR T
Hanjiang Jinxing Shoe China US$4,900,000 30%  Manufacture of

Industrial Co., Ltd., rh 4,900,000 Jt footwear products

Putian City B A
YAV 4 B REZE

AR H
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19 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 REERFEZMELR
2019 2018
—ZF M —F A
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# T T HE T
At 1 January w—H—H 1,949 2,487
Exchange adjustment [ifE i, 5 & 258 186
Share of losses JRE A s 4R (1,205) (724)
At 31 December Wt —_H=+—H 1,002 1,949
Details of the joint ventures as at 31 December 2019 are as R-FE-NET A=+ —H GEAELT
follows: T
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of Interest held
Name operation paid-up capital indirectly Principal activities
g sE By B E MR CHUR ARG P s R
Marlow House Asia Limited British Virgin Islands/ 2 shares of 50%  Distribution of
Malaysia US$1 each footwear and
P LRSS 28 R B T accessories
5 St |ESTWwa and investment
holding
3 S RS it e i
GO E e g2)a
Ondul Investment Limited Hong Kong 100,000 ordinary 50% Holding of
RIE A R A T shares of trademarks
HK$100,000 A R
100,000 7T 73 /%
100,000/8 % 7 i
20 INVENTORIES 20 #88
2019 2018
—E s TR A
HK$’000 HK$°000
T# T T TT
Raw materials J b KL - 6,403
Work-in-progress TE - 13,240
Finished goods B 162,013 972,671
162,013 992,314
Inventories as at 31 December 2019 are stated net of provisions of RZE—NFETZH=1—H FE IR
HK$170,240,000 (2018: HK$197,348,000). 1 4#170,240,0009 78 (—F — /\4F : 197,348,000

#IT) KIR -
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21 TRADE RECEIVABLES 21 ¥ 5 WOk K
2019 2018
—F TE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# T T HE T
Trade receivables & 5y e R 3K 79,976 169,761
Loss allowance ks 1R $% A (15,101) (9,661)
Trade receivables — net &5 ME IR 3K — 1 40 64,875 160,100
The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as P gE 5 HARH I 2 & 5 B R o A i
follows:
2019 2018
—FE SN
HK$°000 HK$°000
T-# 5t T # T
0 - 30 days 0%30H 22,058 92,858
31 -60 days 31260H 16,777 39,538
61 —90 days 61%290H 12,328 10,933
91 — 180 days 91%180H 10,302 11,128
181 — 360 days 181%360H 10,034 5,643
Over 360 days 360H L F 8,477 9,661
79,976 169,761
The carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated in the 54 5 JE WSOHR K < MR T (B DA T 51 B R
following currencies:
2019 2018
“E A TE— )\
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T THETT
RMB N 55,930 144,224
New Taiwan dollar (“NTD”) AW (el 3,849 12,174
US$ FTT 5,096 3,702
64,875 160,100
The carrying values of trade receivables approximate their fair B 5 ME R R 2 MR T8 (A B LA TR - A
values. The Group generally allows an average credit period of 30 L — 4G THE S &P F¥30%00H 581
to 90 days to its trade customers other than major and long standing M E TR RIE P 2 Rl 1 R A5 BRI B A 4R
customers with whom specific extended terms have been agreed [ B BH % 5 1 e o

between the Group and the relevant counter parties.
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22 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22 H i EWIRK ~ e R AT IE
PREPAYMENTS

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments mainly comprise Al E A BR BK  F R TE A BKH £ E A
value-added tax recoverable of HK$53,763,000 (2018: AT Y[R B E B 253,763,000 00 (& — A
HK$158,421,000) and rental and other deposits of HK$50,804,000 A 158,421,000 o6) DA K AH & K i % &
(2018: HK$125,216,000). 50,804,000% 70 (—F—/\ : 125,216,000%7T) °
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 BlekBa&%HD
2019 2018
“ER A TE— R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T &0
Cash at banks and in hand AT R T IS & 170,348 182,625
Deposits with banks within three months TEFH B =0 A LA 2
of maturity AT 11,945 6,123
182,293 188,748
Less: Disposal group classified as W AR EREZ
held-for-sale H A R (234) (2,227)
182,059 186,521
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are Bl B B A5 (B W) 2 MR T (B DA T 51 68 W R

denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018
—EF e e S AN
HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T T
RMB NG 134,514 166,364
Us$ e 18,425 11,615
NTD Eia=ki 26,385 8.893
HK$ 5T 2,969 1,876
182,293 188,748
As at 31 December 2019, the weighted average effective interest M_EF—NETZA=+—H » AL R
rate of the Group’s bank deposits within three months of maturity Jb =AW H LA Z SRAT A7 3K 2 INHESF- 149 B 1R 48 )
is 1.6% (2018: 2.3%) per annum. RELOM (ZF— )\ 23H) o
RMB is not a freely convertible currency in the international N BT A B BT 35 | S o A% AR 5L
market. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies and i T S e I T L v 8K P 28 32 v IR U AL 22
remittance of RMB out of mainland China is subject to the A1 REE 8 1) 1R B v L RR L

rules and regulations of exchange control promulgated by the
government of mainland China.
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24 ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE

(i) The following non-current assets were classified as held-for- (1)
sale as at 31 December 2019:

24 pEAETHEHNEZEE

AN B—NAEFTA=Z+—H > IFIER
B EE AR EL

2019 2018
“E A e SN2
HK$°000 HK$°000
T-# T T-# T
Assets classified as held-for-sale: PGB 2 B -
Right-of-use assets o R 2,901 -
Property, plant and equipment E RN &S] 27,983 111,840
Investment properties Eiig-¢//ES - 10,589
30,384 122,429
(ii) The following assets and liabilities of disposal group were (i) R=F—NFT+HA=+—H D FhE

I 2 B M A B ELE

classified as held-for-sale as at 31 December 2019:

2019 2018
K2 ZE—
HK$’000 HK$’000
¥ T T
Assets classified as held-for-sale: PELBIFE EZ BE -
Land use rights b 5 R - 1,989
Property, plant and equipment Wy ~ W KBt 30,641 15,706
Right-of-use assets i R HE 9,906 -
Other receivables, deposits and oA B SOIR K~ H B I
prepayments TEAT 3R 48 9
Cash and cash equivalents B4 KBl a5 EY 234 2,227
Total assets of disposal group classified SEAFEELE M EHAR
as held-for-sale HEAE 40,829 19,931
Liabilities directly associated with assets B A 1T IE B2 E
classified as held-for-sale: HIEMEZ A -
Other payables and accrued charges Lt JE AT R R B T 6,408 186
Deferred income tax liabilities % S T A5 B JH B 1,637 806
Total liabilities of disposal group classified A RELEZ I EARN
as held-for-sale AHEF 8,045 992

SLOM R F AR i 2 WS AR B - AR

Cumulative gain/(loss) recognised in other comprehensive

income relating to disposal group classified as held-for-sale is oA A T i g B R BTl as (B HR) 10
as follows: e
2019 2018
ZF A TR\
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt ARP

[ifE 53, 75 HH 19 (105)

Currency translation differences
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25 TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as

25 H 5 WA ek
2 9 L P 57 2 505 MG M R A A T

| 4 #t 2019

127

follows:
2019 2018
—E s TE AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
0 - 30 days 0%30H 19,579 171,866
31 -60 days 31260H 32,133 106,575
61 —-90 days 61290H 24,294 161,221
91 — 180 days 912 180H 19,324 86,121
181 — 360 days 181%360H 37,597 118
Over 360 days 360H LA | 5,773 4,728
138,700 530,629
26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 A
2019 2018
SR e SN2
Number of Number of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 of HK$0.10
each HK$°000 each HK$°000
B e 1 g JR T
0.10% L 2 0.10¥ T2
A R 9 i i H T T
Authorised: B
At 1 January and R—=H—HAX
31 December T-HA=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: CEITRHE -
At 1 January and R—H—H0 K
31 December +=-H=+—H 1,649,142,384 164,914  1,649,142,384 164,914
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27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

27 DAy 2 R B 2 Ak R 5

TRANSACTIONS
(i) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions () DIRERATEUBG BERZARRZS
On 29 May 2003, the Company adopted a share option ATEFEZERH LA RN AN
scheme (the “Old Scheme”), which was amended on 7 ERERESTF ([&EFH D) - Zr i =%
December 2009 and expired on 28 May 2013. Upon expiry FNFETZALHBR Rt —F—=F 4
of the Old Scheme, no further share options could be granted D [y RANY= I = I i ) - i
under the Old Scheme but, in all other respects, the provisions W R AT T R TRORE - MEAE ST A A Y
of the Old Scheme shall remain in force to the extent T B 5T 3 0 A SO AR B A BT 28 0 3 (8
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any share option BT 3 JiE o T R B A o] A RE B A
granted prior to the expiry of the Old Scheme. AT
On 27 August 2013, a new share option scheme (the “New B oE AN L H s RAARER
Scheme”) was approved by shareholders of the Company R UE — TELHT Y B TR RE S ) (T st & ) 31 B
and adopted by the Company. Unless otherwise cancelled or AN FIERAN o BR AU s A& e Ah > B
amended, the New Scheme will remain in force for 10 years A PR AN H AR AR T AR IR R -
from the date of adoption.
The share options are generally valid for a period of ten e JI ME AT 25O — 2 4R T R AR A
years and will lapse if the grantees leave the Group before et JOHE T A7 (0 I AS P AT TR s A SR > I
the share options are exercisable. The Group has no legal RE B 5 R0 o A AR [N M0 8 sl 2 T AT
or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the share DA B 4 i (e sl At it e R
options in cash.
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and i AAT (0 2 i JHE S ) R G P 24 4
their weighted average exercise prices are as follows: B2 EEmT
2019 2018
ZEZ A TE—
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price  share options  exercise price  share options
TR F 35 Vil J e e P-4 S FRCHE
17 BE 1R B H T fE #H
HK$ HK$
i oo T
At 1 January w—=H—H 2.84 34,390,000 3.74 62,205,000
Lapsed ER 298  (10,010,000) 485  (27,815,000)
At 31 December W+ H=+—H 2.79 24,380,000 2.84 34,390,000
Exercisable at 31 December &+ = =+— H a7 {f 279 24,380,000 337 27,640,000

128 Daphne International Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2019



B UR OB OBR B AR AW | 4 2019 129

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f 5 B 5 e o W

27 SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 27 NI B e 2 sk A2 5 (#)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(i) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)
Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

() USSR UBRGAREBEZ RS

(%)
TEAEAR W RAT 6 2 BEAHER 201 B S A7 4
Er -

Exercise Price Number of share options
AT HAE Jie JBE HE S H

Grant date Expiry date HKS$ 2019 2018
e #3 H 5ot RN TR A
27 January 2010 26 January 2020
X -EFFE—H=1++LH SR TEFE—H=TNH 6.19 8,700,000 12,180,000
22 July 2010 21July2020
—“Z—FZFELA -+ H X EF LA+ —H 7.61 300,000 300,000
21 January 2014 20 January 2024
X —NE—H=+—H ZETMNE—AZTH 4.50 280,000 1,260,000
25 January 2017 24 January 2027
X -+t —H=1+HH X LEFE—HA=FMHA 0.70 15,100,000 20,650,000

24,380,000 34,390,000

(ii) Cash-settled share-based payment transactions

The Company has granted share appreciation rights (“SARs”)
to certain directors of the Company and certain employees
of the Group. SARs are granted in units with each unit
representing one ordinary share of the Company. Under the
terms of grant, the outstanding SARs are subject to a vesting
period of one to three years from the date of grant. The
exercise price is from HK$4.50 to HK$6.19 per unit.

As at 31 December 2019, all (2018: all) of the outstanding
SARs were exercisable. Movements in the number of SARs
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2019 are as

(i) PABL& &5 5L DA 2 B B Z Ak R 5

AN A AR ml T R AR TR
B By (R ([ B RE ) o Bty
ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%&ﬁ M A AT AL 7] —

W B By o AREEAR R o i RAT
Z Ay EREA AT G e B IR — =
SARZ R HAT U 2y 8 4500 0T
£6.19% 7T °

REF—NEFZA=1T—H > &8 (=%
—NAR - 2R 1 R AT 8 A4 BB A 49 (ELRE VT
fiff - E-F-NFE+-H=1+—HI

follows: AR FE M AR AT B (EAE 2 B H B an
o
Number of SARs
ety B ERE S H
2019 2018
—FAE —F— )4
At 1 January w—H—H 18,060,000 18,190,000
Lapsed BN (1,560,000) (130,000)
At 31 December Wt H=+—H 16,500,000 18,060,000

There were no material expenses or liabilities in relation to
the SARs.

Nfr 4 B AR A7 Y8 (0 WA o] 199 O 2 P R £

o
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28 RESERVES

Currency
translation

reserve

Erb
HES'000
T

Statutory
Teserves

i34 ]
HKS000

Tk
(Note ()
(Kt ()

Retained
profits

RREH
HKS 000
T

Total

it
HKS'000
T

At January 2018

Currency translation differences:
Group
Associates and a joint venture
Change in fair value of an equity
investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Disposal of an equity investment
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Disposal of subsidiaries
Loss for the year
Share option scheme:
Value of grantee services

Transfer upon lapse of share options

RoF-NE=R-H

Eizg:

R
BRLARGELE
ELFRETARbEE

Witz BB AF

ELFRETARbEE
iEivaiyvvd
th&

thERELA

ERES

Rk
ERARHEE
Rk ER

191,502

(102,195)
3%

191
(3.730)

185,914

314
16,697
(994397)

SLM40

1,709,993

(102,195)
3%

(10

(994,397)

1,185

At31 December 2018

Currency translation differences:
Group
Associates and a joint venture
Disposal of subsidiaries
Loss for the year
Share option scheme:
Value of grantee services

Transfer upon lapse of share options

g 21U i oy el

EiEg:

S
BERARAELE
HEHEA

ENER
BREA:
KEARHERE
REREX AR

86,103

(17,09
@
0

173,007

1,198,180

(204)
(L,070,121)

10911

1614911

(17,009)
@)

(1,070,127)

65

At31 December 2019

REF-RETZAZ -0

09,315

173,007

138,760

s
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B B 5 e o M

28 RESERVES (CONTINUED)

28 fififh (#)

Notes: P &E

(a)  The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal amount of shares (a)  JBEASTE [B] it ffi 48 A8 28 R — JUJU LA I T80 003 2 TG
repurchased by the Company in 1999. 8 -

(b)  The merger reserve represents the difference between the aggregate (b) A DAk Al e B 2 W R Bl AR A WIS E B 2 BA T
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries at the date on {H 4858 BLAS 8 AR I8 — JL LR AR R AR 2 Ui
which they were acquired by the Company and the nominal amount of the AR T B AT B A T (L A 2 22 o
share capital issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition
pursuant to the corporate reorganisation in 1995.

(c) As stipulated by regulations in mainland China, the Company’s (c)  ARPE B AR AL - AL A B OK e T M AR

subsidiaries established and operated in mainland China are required to
appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) to the statutory reserves and enterprise expansion fund, at rates
determined by their respective boards of directors. The statutory reserves
can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the issuance
of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for
the development of business operations. When the statutory reserves
reach an amount equal to 50% of the registered capital of the Company’s
subsidiaries, further appropriation is optional.

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting,

29

Z WA Jag 2 R 2R B AR R (RCHR S — 4R S 4R
&) 2 — AR A TR E R M A SE R HEAK
LU by BE B 2 W) 45 1 2 S R E o TR OE Gl A T T
PEHEE b — 4 Bl R ST AR 34T AL > T e 9t
B AT A 9% RSB o TRE (W RE B AR L WM
Ji§ 23 R RE M AS0% A% - W] IR AS P

3 SiE It 15 B IR
OB B R MO S A SR S R AR Z &

are shown in the consolidated balance sheet: BT
2019 2018
S S| - R =\
HK$’000 HKS$’000
F# TH T
Deferred income tax assets IR IIE T 15 B T - 47,705
Deferred income tax liabilities AE HiE T 15 B IH A& (4,325) (4,656)
Less: Disposal group classified as W A ARELE L E
held-for-sale #1571 1,637 806
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 2,688) _____ 3.850)
Net deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets AL T A3 BLIE (B & A T (2,688) 43,855




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 29 FEHE P13 BeIE (4])

Deferred income tax is calculated on temporary differences under R AT T A5 0 TEL PR P A 125 ol IR 25 R A 8 B
the liability method using the applicable tax rates. REHH o
Movements in net deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) are as WAL TS BLHE & (AR WEZ S8 F
follows:
2019 2018
ZF A T )\
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# T T-# T
At 1 January w—H—H 43,855 256,727
Exchange adjustment fE 53, 3 B 130 (4,300)
Charged to consolidated income statement R A %5 Al i % (48,310) (209,378)
Transfer to disposal group classified as S AR ELEZ
held-for-sale & 4RI 1,637 806
At 31 December wt+—A=+—H (2,688) 43,855
Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting AR A o R BB T e I B AR (FE [R) — OB ) s
of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) during the year I 2 & BRIK B T 2 B A

are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets Decelerated tax
ERmRELE Provisions depreciation TaxTosses Others Total
i BERENE 2143 i it
019 018 019 018 019 018 019 018 019 018

= ST S ST ST S U T S ST S
HES'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKSO0 — HKSO00  HKSO0 — HKS000  HKS'000  HES'000  HKSOW
PR ter Tt thc  ThE  Ter  ThR ki fRR fan

At 1 January p=A-H 47,081 130903 15436 12,808 39 128027 2,783 6953 65,716 218751
Exchange adjustment Eria 1 (5861) 0 (19) - 1898 - (208) (15) (4963)
(Charged)/eredited to consolidated () /HALA

income staterment L% (47,070) (77.961) (154352) 3380 (39)  (129492) (2,783) (3.962) (65,700 (208,035)
Transfer to disposal group BRENBARRR

classified as held-for-sale 7 R - - - - - 3 - - - o)
At31 December REZA=4-0 - 081 - 15456 - 3% - 278 - 65,716
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

29 REE 3 BIE ()

W 4R 2019 133

Withholding tax on
Deferred income tax liabilities Accelerated tax depreciation ~ undistributed profits Others Total
BEAE B B £ 16 IR 1 A REM B il it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“FO0E CEF-NE O ZEROAE CF-AF ZROAE CF-AF ZF N TR
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000
T T Ti#n T Ti#n T Ti#n T
At 1 January R=A-A 4838 - 8,182 17,7191 9,004 21,861 22,04
Exchange adjustment [ A% (258) - - () (405) (145) (663)
Charged/(credited) to consolidated e/ GIA &8
income statement sk 333 = (8,18)  (17,786) 9,192 (17,391) 1,343
Transfer to disposal group EREDFANELEL
classified as held-for-sale th &Rl (843) - - - - (1637) (843)
At31 December i I el 4070 - - = 17,791 2,688 21,861

The expiry of unrecognised tax losses are as follows:

R R B IE s B 2 e RS DL T

2019 2018

I S [ S —E )\ F

HK$°000 HK$’000

Tt T #5 T

Tax losses expiring in 5 years AR A JiE I 2 B T s 1R 3,233,413 2,590,854
Tax losses expiring after 5 years FAE AR JE i 2 B TE R 4R 50,609 25,303
Tax losses without expiry date B JE T H B 2 BLIE S R 75,279 75,406
At 31 December Br=ZH=+—H 3,359,301 2,691,563

As at 31 December 2019, the potential deferred income tax assets
in respect of the above unrecognised tax losses amounted to

HK$828,513,000 (2018: HK$661,681,000).

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$4,062,000 (2018:
HK$46,897,000), in respect of unremitted earnings of
approximately HK$73,367,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$926,431,000), have not been recognised for the withholding
tax as the Group controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries.

AR —JUFE+ - H =1+ —H » Bl KRR

B IE RS R B 2 B T S R EEE SR 5
828,513,000%5 7T (& — /\4F : 661,681,000%5
Jt) ©

B | e i ) 7 /N N Bt el X N
TEH 31 814,062,000 76 (- F — /ULE 46,897,000
V0 FERRE 4E BT 1S BT A Ak > IR A A A T A
A R BEEUR - R R —JUET A
= —H > REHSAFRAE73,367,0008 5T (—
F— J\4E 1 926,431,000890) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 30 BlewaEEr
(i) Cash generated from/(used in) operations ) BEELE () ZHE
Reconciliation of operating loss to cash generated from/(used WA mHEESEELA () 281482 %
in) operations is as follows: R -
2019 2018
“E A e SN2
HK$°000 HK$°000
T# T THE T
Operating loss KB e 1R (1,019,535) (786,577)
Amortisation W8 - 1,945
Depreciation of investment properties ig-CVE Lk 7,772 5,244
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 43¢ ~ 5 K a5 37 85 80,310 135,745
Depreciation of right-of-use assets il R e 251,564 -
Gain on disposal of land use rights t B o R A i AR - (2,670)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H B B B 2 W Ui A (4,400) (34,290)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and Y R BB
equipment i 48 11,594 17,488
Impairment of intangible assets Y & A ek - 20,371
Interest income FLB A (1,848) (5.173)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment ¥ 3 ~ W7 A 5% A5 Ik (B = 10,640
Share-based payment expense DA o R B 2 AN B BH 3¢ 65 1,185
Operating cash flows before working capital 5 % & 4 5 B ] 2 584
changes W& mE (674,478) (636,092)
Decrease in inventories HFRW A 809,208 194,419
Decrease in trade receivables, B 5 ME W R R~ Ho A E i iR
other receivables, deposits and prepayments A g T AT FOE D 531,930 299,612
Decrease in trade payables, other payables, 52 5 EA R~ FCAt BB AN HR
accrued charges and contract liabilities JEST 2 I A 79 B R D (440,369) (11,275)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations mEEA (TR 284 226,291 (153,336)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

&5 W 0 i R B RE
30 CASHFLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 30 Bl & &2 & B (%)
(ii) Net debt reconciliation (i) EHEFHEZHIE
This section sets out an analysis and the movement of net AR IE FEZ AT S s o
y
debt.
Lease Cash and cash
Bank loans liabilities equivalents Total
Rae ks
HAT R Mg AR FHEHD Mgt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T#x T#x T#x
Net debt as at N E— \FE—H
1 January 2018 —HZ EHFHE (156,274) - 300,114 143,840
Cash flows B (35,756) - (121,916) (157,672)
Effect of foreign exchange [ R %&£ )
rate changes B (279) - 10,550 10,271
Net debt as at W oE—-NFE+ A
31 December 2018 =t —HZEBEHE (192,309) - 188,748 (3,561)
Change in accounting policy & 7B % B
(Note 2.2(iv)) (Bt 5E2.23v)) - (457,269) - (457,269)
Net debt as at RZE—NFE—-H—HZ
1 January 2019 & A (192,309) (457,269) 188,748 (460,830)
Cash flows HeRis 191,191 253,061 (7,150) 437,102
Non-cash movement on HEZEHE
leases — net S — R = 156,741 = 156,741
Effect of foreign exchange  fE R %5 )
rate changes P 1,118 1,377 695 3,190
Net debt as at w_E—LFE+ A
31 December 2019 “t+— B2 EEEHE - (46,090) 182,293 136,203
31 COMMITMENTS 31 &
(i) Capital commitments (i) BEARKE
2019 2018
—E2 A —F— )\
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#t TH T
Contracted but not provided for SEHEOEEE S L0 = 634




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

31 COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 31 A& ()
(ii) Non-cancellable operating leases (i) APIHEKEMHE
The investment properties are leased to tenants under M EW LA EME AT > Kl
operating leases with rental payments every 3-12 months. SR =M A =+ A R K
fif e
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases of investment LB L A% ) 2 2 S A AT g T LR A SRR AN
properties are as follows: T
2019 2018
S 2 & A
HK$°000 HK$’000
T# T T# T
Within 1 year —FR 12,308 11,609
Between 1 and 2 years — AR A 11,127 10,836
Between 2 and 3 years AR R AR 10,337 10,541
Between 3 and 4 years =AY AR 9,048 10,561
Between 4 and 5 years VU4 & AR 5,700 9,244
Later than 5 years HAER 9,851 15,889
58,371 68,680
32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 32 @ THRGHE
CATEGORY
2019 2018
ZZ A TE A
HK$°000 HK$’000
T-# 7t T # T
Financial assets at amortised cost: LA S 0 AR 7T 4 19 2 il A -
Trade receivables B 7y M i iRk 64,875 160,100
Other receivables excluding S th J88 Uiz R 3K
non-financial assets (F1 B J < il 5 ) 83,244 116,431
Pledged bank deposits 2K ERAT A7 K = 174,248
Cash and cash equivalents B4 I B4 S ) 182,293 188,748
Total At 330,412 639,527
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: LA R 5 AN 2 01 2 A
Trade payables B 5 HEAF IR K 138,700 530,629
Other payables and accrued charges excluding JH Al 8 Ak R SR B R T 2
non-financial liabilities (FnkxIE &R ARE) 118,751 298,020
Lease liabilities HE AR 46,090 -
Bank loans AT E K - 192,309
Total At 303,541 1,020,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

f B B 5 e o M

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES

The Group entered into the following related party transactions
during the year:

(i) Transaction with a related company

33 BT AR 5 B A B

A I AE A R AT R S BRI O K 5

(i) HEBAWZRS

2019 2018

—F A ZE— )\

HK$’000 HK$°000

T# T T-# T

Sales of goods to a joint venture ] £ 4 2L 8 B B 2,873 7,839

Sales of goods to a joint venture were conducted in the
normal course of the Group’s business. The terms of
transactions were determined and agreed between the Group
and the counter party.

(ii) Year-end balance with a related company

] 5 Al SE B B B D A AR ) R E S
AR LT o 32 5 R T REAR AL B AL 5
i i g B[] AR B E -

(i) B BH W W) 2 AR K A AR

2019 2018

S R\

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt T W I

Trade receivable from a joint venture JEC G 7 A 3 R H 5,096 6,158

Trade receivable from a joint venture arised mainly from the
sales of goods. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable according to the trade terms.

(iii) Key management personnel compensation
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid/payable to the directors of the
Company, are as follows:

JRE MG 7 A 2 AR T 2 oy S S B A
BRAE % AT - B o M 5 ki -

Gii) FEFHAB Z FH W
AL EEEHBAB ZHM (BEE A,
fIARNEEH 2 HIE) T

2019 2018

St L S SN

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt T 0

Salaries, allowances and bonuses e~ Bk MAEAD 12,458 17,173
Share-based payment expense DAty B i 2 AN 3K B 3 36 639
12,494 17,812

(iv) Transaction with a key management personnel
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group drew
down a bank loan facility of HK$27,964,000, of which the
collaterals were provided by the Chairman of the Company.
The bank loan was repaid in full during the year.

(v B—FEEHMABZIRY
BEZ - NF+THA=ZT—HIEFE
A A [ TR AR N ) R B I 2 4R
1T AHA 527,964,000 90  PLERTT B K
ELA A N A AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 34 = HH) 45 SR 4

DIRECTORS
(i) Emoluments of the directors and chief executive () EHFRITBAER(ITBMEAKRDZHE
officer (“CEQO”)
Share-based
payment
Fees Salaries expense Total
Rz
W4 Wi& B % Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Tt Tl T
(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note (b))
(i ik (a)) (B k(b)) (Fif k(b))
2019 —“E AR
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai R
(Chairman & CEO) (LREFATEAH ) - 4,020 14 4,034
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao REFIE - 2,401 7 2,408
Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun Bt B SR - 600 7 607
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence B e
(Note (c)) (B 5E(c)) 106 = = 106
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai o JIE oA 150 - - 150
Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng AR 150 - - 150
Mr. Lee Ted Tak Tai (Note (c))  ZHE% Sk (i sk(c)) 225 = = 225
631 7,021 28 7,680
2018 —E N\
Mr. Chang Chih-Kai R
(Chairman & CEO) (FEREFITE ) - 3,528 255 3,783
Mr. Chang Chih-Chiao REFIE - 2,225 128 2,353
Mr. Chen Tommy Yi-Hsun Bt By Sk - 1,851 128 1,979
Mr. Chen Ying-Chieh (Note (d)) ~ BRIEAS JE2E (B E(d)) 430 - - 430
Mr. Huang Shun-Tsai IR S A 150 - - 150
Mr. Kuo Jung-Cheng AR 150 - - 150
Mr. Lee Ted Tak Tai AR E 450 - - 450
1,180 7,604 511 9,295
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(i)

(ii)

(iiii)

Emoluments of the directors and chief executive
officer (“CEO”’) (Continued)

Notes:

(a)  The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company
were in respect of their respective services as a director of the
Company or its subsidiaries.

(b)  The emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the Company
were in respect of directors’ other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiary
undertakings.

(¢c) Mr. Lee Ted Tak Tai resigned as independent non-executive
director of the Company on 30 June 2019. Mr. Hon Ping Cho
Terence was appointed as independent non-executive director on
25 September 2019.

(d)  Mr. Chen Ying-Chieh resigned as non-executive director of the
Company on 18 September 2018.

Retirement benefits of directors
For each of the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,

no retirement benefits were paid or payable to the directors.

Termination benefits of directors, and consideration
provided to third parties for making available directors’
services

For each of the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no termination benefit was paid or payable to any director of
the Company. No consideration was paid or payable to any
third party for making available any director’s services.

34 EHP 5 MELR (4)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

R RATBARRR ([T B ]) 2 &
(%)
B 3k -

(a) AT SR HEAT A W) 2 BN < G AR 1 1)
A R B R 2 D ARk A T R AR S -

(b) AT ERMEAT A ) o 2 W < S R A S
R A ) G A A 3 g s T R 48 1 A
s o

(©) FERBERF—IEANA =T HEER
YT HE BT o ERALEER —F— L
A AT AR AR S I BT S A o

(d) HIZFE—/FILA /A BRSA e B
AT AT 3 F A

38 I A

WEEF BT NEF =1
FI b AR 4F B2 - B A BORE £ 2 AR K
A o

A% 0k D 0 A A o B AR H 2 IR B 1
55 =07 SR i AQ

ME XN =E—NFE+H =+—
H ok W AR B > A 4 ) A AT o] 35 2
A5 o B A #¢ 1E 08 1 AR A RS EAE B R
RS T AT ] 55 = O 0 A sl B A5 AR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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34

35

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

(iv) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, no loan, quasi-loan or
other dealing was entered into by the Company or any of
its subsidiary undertakings in favour of any director of the
Company, any controlled body corporate by or connected
entity with any director of the Company.

(v) Directors’ material interests in transactions,

arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in

relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a

party and in which a director of the Company had a material

interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Following the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020, a series of
precautionary and control measures have been and continued to
be implemented across mainland China, such as extension of the
Chinese New Year holiday and certain restrictions and controls
over travelling of people. Such precautionary and control measures
have limited the normal operations of the Group in mainland
China, especially the opening of its retail stores, and also severely
affected the consumer sentiment. These are expected to have
certain negative impact on the sales of the Group in the first
quarter of 2020. If the present situation in respect of the COVID-19
outbreak continued and the restrictions and control measures are
prolonged, the Group’s operation performance and cash flow may
be negatively affected. The effect cannot be estimated as of the
date on which this set of consolidated financial statements were
authorised for issue. The Group will continue to closely monitor
the development of the COVID-19 outbreak, take proactive
measures and perform further assessment of its financial impact.
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34

35

3 a8 M HE 4R (4])

(v) AR ES - ZHEHFRZEHEAN
Vo %2 e W B A 32 4 N BG BE K - W
sk B At 52 5 v B R

AR -NERZFE-NET A=+
H oo A8 20 ) B AT fuf B Ja5 4 26 M J 5T 57 £
K ME A R R oA 22 5 LA AR 4 AT AT #E
H o AT 52 FE R N BB B AR S A AT A
H BB ER S Z AN o
(v) EFNRY - RPEHHZERHEE
PTG : a oF ll = B R SR VNR R )
WEFT S BLASE B EB A > HAN A E
HhH AP E A E R S 2 TR
o~ LR E R -

e 7 300 1 4% 9% A R

TR T FAFYI20195E MR TR R AR > P
R A% b ) S0 R AR B — R 4 D RE R O
151 40 SE R F TR B AT B30 AN B AR M AT A T BR i AN
P o A5 B 15 % 122 % 15 e BRI A 4 1 A R B
KRR IE S > FRRIRFEIEFHNEE > I
EYEEETE - ZE WU B AL B R —F
CERFE -GS ATEE - MAB2019
SEL AR 975 BE P A 4R B 0 B UL ERAE - T B R 1
PEE IS M A= AR 4 [ (9 4845 35 B R 3 4 i
G INAEBE - NRLEE M RBR IR
BE H W) > SR MR AN EE o AR KRR
% V) B 53201956 IR g A i AR B 2 BE R
)y PR TR e R AR S A S R R 2 — 2B A o
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 36 A v E E AE R MG 5 B
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(i) Balance sheet of the Company () KAWFEEAMBE
As at 31 December
wt+—_H=4+—H
2019 2018
R s & AR
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Non-current assets JE B E
Investments in subsidiaries R E A R 2 g 368,822 368,822
Amount due from a subsidiary JRE Wi g 2 ) R R 335,858 663,633
________________________________________________________________________________________ R 1032.455
Current assets TEE E
Prepayments TEAT 3KIA 331 333
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EY 1,488 1,529
U, ey . 1862
Current liabilities B A
Other payables and accrued charges A 1R AST MR R % E T 3,772 4,467
Bank loans AT E N - 158,154
e - e 162,621
_Netcurrent liabilities  WEAKEH 953 ... (160.759)
Total assets less current liabilities HEOE WL B AUAE 702,727 871,696
Equity HE 4
Share capital e A 164,914 164,914
Reserves bt 537,813 706,782
Total equity HARE 4 702,727 871,696
Approved by the board of directors on 27 March 2020. CHEHRGR T _FHFE=A - CHHAH-
CHANG CHIH-KAI CHANG CHIH-CHIAO
R RAEE
Director Director

#HH HH
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

(ii) Reserve movement of the Company

36 A2 wE B U R B il il 52 B (4)

(ii) A 2 ] i A 52 B)

Capital Share-based Currency
Share  redemption  Contributed payment translation Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total
P 2
fek 3154
Refrif  HEGE  SARR B ERBE REEA At
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T T Fi#x T T
(Note 28(a)) (Note (a))
(W82 (W)
At 1 January 2018 RZF—=NF—H—H 120,281 2,882 152,891 84,328 (6,621) 365,385 719,146
Currency translation B £
differences - - - - (25,332) - (25,332)
Profit for the year EREA - - - - - 11,783 11,783
Share option scheme: R
Value of grantee services KB A MBF 8 (A - - - 1,185 - - 1,185
Transfer upon lapse of A TEMEHESR B
share options L - - - (51,240) - 51,040 -
At31December 2018 REF-AFFZAET-H O 120281 2882 152,891 34273 (31.953) 428,408 706,782
Currency translation B £
differences - - - - (10,745) - (10,745)
Loss for the year EREF - - - - - (158,289) (158,289)
Share option scheme: VA i/l
Value of grantee services R4 MM H (B[ - - - 65 - - 65
Transfer upon lapse of BRSO
share options L8 - - - (10,911) - 10,911 -
At 31 December 2019 REZ—NE+ZA=1—R 120,281 2,882 152,891 23427 (42,698) 281,030 537,813
Notes: B 5E -
(a)  The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference (a) ARXFRZEARBHEALARE - ELAE

between the aggregate net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company under the corporate reorganisation in 1995 and the

nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition.

(b) The Company’s reserves available for distribution

to its

(b)

AL BE S ] o T R R AR B AR 2 ] R I
AT 2 AR L 2 R o

Ay TG UR T AR A EBCR 22 ok AR B M i
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shareholders of the Company comprise share premium, contributed
surplus, share-based payment reserve and retained profits.
Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the Company’s reserve is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its Articles
of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or the payment of dividends, the Company is able to
pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividends shall be payable out of the profits or other
reserves, including the share premium, of the Company.
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B~ BOABLER - LAJBC 0y 2 B8 2 A AR AT D 4% B
A o HRBEBA S HE R A AL (RABH]) » A0 R Z bl
A ) I SR A3 R S IS M 2 AL T R A
I 22 A SCRTHLBR - 1 52 A H 20 IR sl R A I B AR
AN L L RE Y S R b (R B A
Je 453 i A A AT AR AL U IR o ARIEA Y H] 2
AR TR > JBORZH RAAS 2y ) 2 g5 ) sl H A ot A
(F 45 1B 3 ik AED) SZA »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f 7 0 B5  R T

37 SUBSIDIARIES 37 Fit & 2 ¥
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 TEREIIA -FE—NEF A=t —HZFEE
December 2019: [t e 2 ] -
Place of Particulars of
Name incorporation issued/paid- up capital Interest held  Principal activities
(4 ik M S 2o C# AT/ SRR A FifilEs  FEEH
Aee International Ltd. @ China US$8,580,000 59.96%  Distribution of footwear and accessories
BERMEYE (LG FRA R E 8,580,000 ¢ o SHEEIGTE O S A
Daphne Investment (Group) Co., Ltd. @  China US$30,000,000 100%  Distribution of footwear and accessories and
ERERE EE) ARAR i 30,000,005 & investment holding
I 8B B T R DA R R
Full Pearl International Limited British Virgin Islands 3,294 shares of 59.96%  Investment holding and trading of footwear
EYEBAHRA A B R LS USS1 each and accessories
32048 5t M B RO g S A
15T 2 B
Gentlefit Trading Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary 100%  Investment and trademark holding
HHEHHRA il shares of HK$100; B I 4 A i A
13,055,667
non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$13,055,667 @
1004 727 51008
LA 5 13,055,667i T
74 413,055,667
WECE R R o
Prime Success (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 5,000,000 shares of 100%  Investment holding
ey Vel US$0.01 each BB
5,000,000/ % f i
0.01%TEZ e fih
Shanghai Aixie Information Technology = China RMB1,000,000 100%  Operation of e-commerce business
Co,, Ltd. © i 1,000,0007C A & ARETHHEES
EEERFEERBARA RO
Shoebox Commerce Co., Ltd. @ China RMB460,000,000 96.46%  Distribution of footwear and accessories
HEMEARA RO i 460,000,0007C A [ 7 S BERUE i S
Shoebox Holdings Limited Hong Kong 14,111 ordinary shares of 96.46%  Investment and trademark holding
MR A A Ei HK$381,470,740 BB R A AR
381,470,740% T4 F
14, 1T A
Victoria Success (Shanghai) Limited @ China US$23,000,000 100%  Property holding
KBEE (L) ARA RO i 23,000,003 7 ERER/ES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 7 U 5 i R T

37 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

These companies were established in mainland China in the form of
wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than investments in Full Pear] International Limited and Prime
Success (BVI) Limited which are held directly by the Company, all
subsidiaries shown above are held indirectly by the Company.

Other than Full Pearl International Limited and Prime Success (BVI)
Limited which operate in Hong Kong, all subsidiaries shown above
operate in the same place in which they were incorporated, respectively.

The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends,
nor rights to receive notice, nor rights to attend and vote at any general
meeting of the company, nor rights to participate in any distribution on
winding up.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

The English names of the subsidiaries established in mainland China
represent the best effort by the directors in translating their Chinese names
as they do not have official English names.
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37 g 2> v (%)

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

()

%SGR T A A R B R B G SE 2 A AN A 2

BB & 2 3 B A R 2 \) X Prime Success (BVI)
Limited Z & B AN "l H R A 41 - B350 T A5 Bt e
oA AN B AR o

b & 2 ] B A BR 2 7 K Prime Success (BVI) Limited
AT AL > DL R BRI T A B A 74 AL
T B ST b 2 45 5 o

G437 A A JS 073 1 b SRR SOIGRE 2 ) 2 B B
RSO AT e SRR B A 2 e 5 PR A L 3t
S o T MR I S HE 2 BRLAT ] 23 UK o

5 B W) A AR AP R0 AT T I (ARG AT ] A B
(ERiT A

A P I R e S R R B S R Ty R
TR HLeh SCAA RIS o DR 5 R 5 M 2 )l R A OE
EESS



DAPHNE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

EXREBEERBERLAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
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www.daphneholdings.com
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